
 
 

www.dpfg.com 

 
 

 
PANTHER TRACE II 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

Advanced Meeting Package 
Business Meeting   

 
Monday 

                                       June 25, 2018 
 

 6:30 p.m.  
 

At the: 
Panther Trace II Clubhouse 
11518 Newgate Crest Drive  

Riverview, Florida 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials 
are considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or 
adoption. 



Panther Trace II 
Community Development District 

 
 
 
 

DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC 
15310 Amberly Drive, Suite 175, Tampa, Florida 33647 

Phone: 813-374-9105 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Panther Trace II Community 
Development District 

 
Dear Board Members: 

 
A Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Panther Trace II Community Development 
District is scheduled for M o n d a y , June 25 , 2018  at 6:30 p.m. at the Panther Trace II 
Clubhouse, 11518 Newgate Crest Drive, Riverview, Florida. 

 
The advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation.   Any 
additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 

 
The balance of the agenda is routine in nature and staff will present their reports at the meeting.  If you 
have any questions, please contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Rebecca Rivas 
District Manager 

 
cc: Attorney, Straley Robin 

Engineer, Stantec 
Clubhouse Manager 
District Files 



District:   PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda 

I. Roll Call  

Pledge of Allegiance  

II. Audience Comments   

III. Landscape & Pond Maintenance  

A. Yellowstone Landscape and Irrigation Report Exhibit 1 

B. Remson Aquatics Pond Maintenance Report Exhibit 2 

 Brazilian Pepper Cut and Stump Removal Proposal (To be 
distributed)  

IV. Administrative Matters  

A. Consideration  and Approval of Minutes of the May 21, 2018 Exhibit 3 

B. Acceptance of the Unaudited May 2018 Financials Statements Exhibit 4 

C. Acceptance of the Operations & Maintenance Expenditures May 2018 Exhibit 5 

V. Business Matters  

A. Panther Trace II CDD FY 2017 Final Audit Report Exhibit 6 

B. GHS Irrigation Well Installation Report and Proposal 
Exhibit 7 

 GHS Monthly Meter readings and report submittals $225/mo. 
 

C. Jayman Enterprise, LLC Installation of Fence for Well $2,450.00 Exhibit 8 

D. Republic Services Waste Removal Services $109.18/mo. Exhibit 9 

VI. Staff Reports  

A. District Manager  

Date of Meeting: Monday, June 25, 2018 
Time: 6:30 P.M. 
Location: Panther Trace II Clubhouse 

11518 Newgate Crest Drive 
Riverview, Florida 



Panther Trace II CDD AGENDA  June 25, 2018  

Page 2 of 2 
 

 Water Usage Update  

B. District Counsel  

C. District Engineer  

D. Amenity Manager March 2018 Operations Report Exhibit 10 

VII. Public Comments  

VIII. Supervisors Requests  

IX. Audience Comments – New Business   

X. Adjournment  

 

Dial in Number can be provided upon request to the District office at least 1-week prior to the 
scheduled CDD Board meetings.  



EXHIBIT 1. 
 



941.251.8080 tel 

941.251.8081 fax 

 

6108 33rd Street East 

Bradenton, FL 34203 

 

www.yellowstonelandscape.com 

 

 

 

 

Panther Trace II CDD May 2018 Property Report 
 

 

The month of May began dry and finished wet. During the last 3 weeks of May many 

turf areas both Boulevard and pond banks were not able to be serviced due an excess of 

over 11 inches rain leading to saturated soils. As of current all areas have been serviced 

and the normal service has resumed.  

 

• Summer service schedule is set with weekly mowing on the Boulevard and 

Ponds. 

• Turf condition – Rains have assisted with the turf recovery on most of the 

stressed areas. We will be assessing the Boulevard during the week of 6/18/18 

and providing proposals for turf replacements where needed 

• Irrigation –  

o Currently all approved proposals have been completed and the 

system is operational. 

o Request has been made to record the meter reading monthly. We 

are happy to assist. 

• Bed weed Control – As the rains delayed treatments there are areas where the 

weed pressure is unacceptable. Additional man power has been added to the 

service crew to catch up. 

• Pruning – The next scheduled prune rotation is 6/22/18 

 

















 
EXHIBIT 2. 

 
 



 

  

Panther Trace II CDD 

Water Way Inspection Report  
 

Prepared by: 

Remson Aquatic 

Matthew Remson – Environmental Scientist 

11207 Remson Lane, Riverview, FL 33578 

 Phone: Cell; 813-748-2433    Fax: 813-671-0386 

  

  

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pond: 2 

Comments:  

Algae blooms were found in this 
site and treated. 

 

Pond: 15 

Comments:  

Torpedo Grass was found in this 
site and treated. 

Underwater weeds were present 
and treated. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pond: 16 

Comments:  

Algae blooms were found in this 
site and treated. 

 

Pond: 18 

Comments:  

Little to no Torpedo Grass or 
Algae blooms were found in this 
site. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pond: 21 

Comments:  

Torpedo Grass was found in this 
site and treated. 

Algae blooms were found in this 
site and treated. 

 

Pond: 19 

Comments:  

Little to no Torpedo Grass or 
Algae blooms were found in this 
site. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pond: 23 

Comments:  

Little to no Torpedo Grass or 
Algae blooms were found in this 
site. 

 

Pond: 24 

Comments:  

Little to no Torpedo Grass or 
Algae blooms were found in this 
site. 

 

 



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pond: 26 

Comments:  

 
 

Torpedo Grass was found in this 
site and treated. 

Underwater weeds were present 
and treated. 

Algae blooms were found in this 
site and treated. 

 

Pond: 25 

Comments:  

 

Torpedo Grass was found in this 
site and treated. 

Underwater weeds were present 
and treated. 

Algae blooms were found in this 
site and treated. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Pond: 29 

Comments:  

Torpedo Grass was found in this 
site and treated. 

Underwater weeds were present 
and treated. 

Algae blooms were found in this 
site and treated. 

 

Pond: 36 

Comments:  

Little to no Torpedo Grass or 
Algae blooms were found in this 
site. 

 



Panther Trace II Waterway Report                 06/15/2018 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Remson Aquatics LLC                                    Panther Trace II CDD  
Lake Management                                                   Riverview, FL  

813-748-2433  

 



 
  

EXHIBIT 3. 
 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 
PANTHER TRACE II 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 
 4 

 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Panther Trace II Community 5 

Development District was held on Monday, May 21, 2018 at 6:30 p.m. at the Panther Trace II Clubhouse 6 

11518 Newgate Crest Drive Riverview, FL 33579.  7 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS – Roll Call 8 

Ms. Rivas called the meeting to order.    9 

Present and constituting a quorum were:  10 

 Anthony Cunha   Board Supervisor, Chairman (joined in progress)  11 
 Jeff Spiess   Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 12 

Pamela Wood   Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 
Scott Ward   Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 14 
 15 

Also present were: 16 

Rebecca Rivas   District Manager 17 
 Anna Ramirez   Amenity Manager 18 
 Jody Nelson   Yellowstone 19 
 20 
The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the May 21, 2018 Panther Trace II 21 
CDD Board of Supervisors meeting. 22 
 23 
Pledge of Allegiance 24 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 25 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments 26 

 There being none, next item followed.  27 
 28 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – Landscape & Pond Maintenance 29 

A. Yellowstone Landscape Report 30 

Mr. Nelson presented the Yellowstone Landscape Report. Mr. Nelson noted that the 31 

summer service schedule has been altered due to the recent inclement weather and will 32 

continue to be altered until the rain subsides. Mr. Nelson noted that all irrigation repairs 33 

have been repaired to date and will continue to monitor for any changes. Ms. Rivas asked 34 

for more information regarding the proposal in the amount of $247.27 for a replacement 35 

battery timer. Discussion ensued. 36 

 Ratification – Electric Clubhouse – $646.67 37 

On a MOTION by Mr. Spiess, SECONDED by Mr. Ward, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 38 
approved to ratify the electric clubhouse work in the amount of $646.67 for the Panther Trace II 39 
Community Development District. 40 

 41 



Panther Trace II CDD         May 21, 2018 
Regular Meeting         Page 2 of 6 
 

 Proposal – Irrigation Repair – $247.27 42 

On a MOTION by Mr. Ward, SECONDED by Ms. Wood, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 43 
approved the irrigation repairs in the amount of $247.27 for the Panther Trace II Community 44 
Development District. 45 

B. Remson Aquatics Pond Maintenance Report 46 

 Proposal 1 – Brazilian Pepper Cut and Stump Removal – $1,895.00 47 

 Proposal 2 – Brazilian Pepper (20) Cut and Stump Removal – $9,750.00 48 
Tabled to get a third option proposal from Keith as well as monthly maintenance. 49 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  – Organizational Matters 50 

A. Consideration & Review of Resumes – Seat #2 (Term Expires 11/18)  51 

Ms. Rivas opened the floor for the Board to discuss and nominations for Seat #2. 52 

Discussion ensued. 53 

1. Eric Lanham 54 

Mr. Lanham was not present, next item followed. 55 

2. David F. Steppy 56 

Mr. Steppy gave his introduction and informed the Board about his experience. 57 

3. Claire Shawhan 58 

Ms. Shawhan gave her introduction and informed the Board about her experience. 59 

4. Dennis Schulmerik 60 

Mr. Schulmerik gave his introduction and informed the Board about his experience. 61 

5. David Constantino 62 

Mr. Constantino gave his introduction and informed the Board about his experience. 63 

6. Timothy Sloan 64 

Mr. Sloan gave his introduction and informed the Board about his experience. 65 

B. Board Nomination & Appointment to Vacant Board Supervisor Seat #2 66 

1. David Constantino 67 

Mr. Ward nominated Mr. David Constantino. 68 

2. Claire Shawhan 69 

Mr. Cunha nominated Ms. Claire Shawhan. 70 

3. David F. Steppy 71 

Mr. Spiess nominated Mr. David Steppy. 72 

On a MOTION by Mr. Spiess, SECONDED by Ms. Wood, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 73 
nominated Mr. David F. Steppy, Seat #2, a member of the Board of Supervisors for the Panther Trace II 74 
Community Development District. 75 



Panther Trace II CDD         May 21, 2018 
Regular Meeting         Page 3 of 6 
 

C. Oath of Office of New Supervisors, Supervisor Information Sheet & Form 1. Waiver 76 

or Acceptance of Compensation 77 

Mr. Steppy read and signed the Oath of Office.  78 

Ms. Rivas advised the newly elected supervisors that he is entitled to compensation of 79 

$200 per meeting and asked whether he would like to receive or waive compensation. 80 

Mr. Steppy accepted compensation. 81 

D. Consideration and Adoption of 2018-06 Officers 82 

On a MOTION by Mr. Ward, SECONDED by Ms. Wood, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adopted 83 
Resolution 2018-06 Officers, appointing the Officers of the District as follows: Mr. Anthony Cunha as 84 
Chairman, Mr. Jeff Spiess as Vice Chairman and add Mr. David Steppy as Assistant Secretary for the 85 
Panther Trace II Community Development District. 86 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Administrative Matters 87 

A. Consideration and Approval of Minutes of the April 23, 2018 Meeting 88 

Ms. Rivas presented the April 23, 2018 Minutes and asked for any comments, questions, 89 

or corrections. 90 

On a MOTION by Mr. Cunha, SECONDED by Mr. Spiess, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 91 
approved the April 23, 2018 Meeting Minutes for the Panther Trace II Community Development 92 
District. 93 

B. Acceptance of the Unaudited April 2018 Financial Statements 94 

Ms. Rivas presented the Unaudited April 2018 Financial Statements and asked for any 95 

comments or questions.  96 

On a MOTION by Mr. Cunha, SECONDED by Mr. Spiess, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 97 
approved the Unaudited April 2018 Financial Statements for the Panther Trace II Community 98 
Development District. 99 

C. Acceptance of the Operations & Maintenance Expenditures April 2018 100 

Ms. Rivas reviewed the Operations & Maintenance Expenditures for April and asked for 101 

any comments or questions. 102 

On a MOTION by Mr. Spiess, SECONDED by Mr. Cunha, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 103 
approved the April 2018 Operations & Maintenance Expenditures as presented for the Panther 104 
Trace II Community Development District. 105 

 106 

D. Issuer Annual Continuing Disclosure Report 107 

On a MOTION by Mr. Cunha, SECONDED by Mr. Steppy (after Oath), WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the 108 
Board approved the Issuer Annual Continuing Disclosure Report for the Panther Trace II 109 
Community Development District. 110 



Panther Trace II CDD         May 21, 2018 
Regular Meeting         Page 4 of 6 
 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Business Matters 111 

A. Hillsborough County Number of Registered Voters 112 

There are currently 2,244 registered voters in Hillsborough County for the Panther Trace 113 

II community. Ms. Rivas states that this number is for informational purposes. 114 

B. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2018-05 Adopting the FY 2018-2019 115 

Proposed Budget 116 

Budget hearing is set for July 23, 2018. 117 

On a MOTION by Mr. Cunha, SECONDED by Mr. Ward, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adopted 118 
2018-05 FY 2018-2019 Proposed Budget & Setting the Public Hearing for July 23, 2018 at 6:30 119 
p.m. at the Panther Trace II Clubhouse  for the Panther Trace II Community Development District. 120 

C. Discussion on Landscape RFP 121 

Ms. Rivas opened the floor for the Board to discuss the Landscape RFP. Discussion 122 

ensued. 123 

On a MOTION by Mr. Ward, SECONDED by Mr. Spiess, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board accepted 124 
the Landscape RFP and direct District Manager to proceed for the Panther Trace II Community 125 
Development District. 126 

D. Discussion on Batting Cages and Permits 127 

Ms. Rivas opened the floor for the Board to discuss adding batting cages to the 128 

community and the permitting process.  129 

Mr. Ward gave a presentation about adding batting cages to the community. 130 

Discussion ensued. 131 

On a MOTION by Mr. Spiess, SECONDED by Mr. Ward, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 132 
approved moving forward with two adding batting cages to the community not to exceed $27,500 133 
for the Panther Trace II Community Development District. 134 

E. Resident Request – Pickle Ball Request and Proposal 135 

 Florida Courts $450 136 

Mr. Steppy requested the Board consider a proposal from Florida Courts for a second set of lines. 137 

Discussion ensued. 138 

On a MOTION by Mr. Spiess, SECONDED by Mr. Ward, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 139 
approved Florida Court Proposal - $450 a second set of lines for the pickle ball court for the 140 
Panther Trace II Community Development District. 141 

F. Resident Request - Cambray Hedge 142 

 Ms. Rivas presented a Resident Request - Cambray Hedge. 143 

 Discussion ensued.  District Manager will contact Yellowstone with updated proposal and map of 144 

 design for established grass, shrub and hedge. 145 



Panther Trace II CDD         May 21, 2018 
Regular Meeting         Page 5 of 6 
 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Staff Reports 146 

A. District Manager 147 

 Water Usage Update 148 
District Manager will check with County to confirm the water credit and inquire about 149 

how they calculate the water credit. 150 

B. District Counsel 151 

  There being none, next item followed. 152 

C. District Engineer 153 

  There being none, next item followed. 154 

D. Amenity Manager March 2018 Operations Report 155 

 Hog Removal 156 
1. Expel Wildlife $850 initial set up with $150 per hog trap 157 

On a MOTION by Mr. Spiess, SECONDED by Mr. Steppy, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 158 
approved the Expel Wildlife Proposal - $850 for initial set up with $150 per hog trap for the 159 
Panther Trace II Community Development District. 160 

 ADA Compliance – Jayman Enterprises $1,380 161 

On a MOTION by Mr. Spiess, SECONDED by Mr. Cunha, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 162 
approved Jayman Enterprises Proposal - $1,380 to replace markings at sidewalk ramps (4) for the 163 
Clubhouse to be ADA Compliant for the Panther Trace II Community Development District. 164 

 MHD – Lock on Tennis Court $4,579.60 165 

On a MOTION by Mr. Spiess, SECONDED by Mr. Ward, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 166 
approved the MHD Proposal for Lock on Tennis Court, subject to electricity availability, not to 167 
exceed $4,600 for the Panther Trace II Community Development District. 168 

 169 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Public Comments 170 

There being none, next item followed. 171 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Supervisors Requests 172 

 There being none, next item followed. 173 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment  174 

On a MOTION by Mr. Cunha, SECONDED by Mr. Spiess, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 175 
adjourned the meeting for the Panther Trace II Community Development District. 176 

 177 
*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter 178 
considered at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 179 
proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 180 
 181 



Panther Trace II CDD         May 21, 2018 
Regular Meeting         Page 6 of 6 
 
Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 182 
meeting held on ________________________. 183 
 184 
             185 
Signature      Signature 186 
 187 
             188 
Printed Name      Printed Name 189 
Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary  Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chairman  190 



 
 
 

EXHIBIT 4. 
 



May 31, 2018

Panther Trace II

Community Development District

Financial Statements

(Unaudited)



 GENERAL SERIES 2014

 FUND DEBT SERVICE TOTAL
  

ASSETS:  

 CASH - OPERATING ACCOUNT 53,499$              -$                  53,499$             

 PETTY CASH 100                     -                    100                    

 CASH - DEBIT CARD 1,787                  -                    1,787                 

 INVESTMENTS:

     MONEY MARKET ACCOUNT 840,596              -                    840,596             

     REVENUE TRUST -                      283,776            283,776             

     RESERVE CASH TRUST -                      327,553            327,553             

     REDEMPTION - PREPAYMENT TRUST -                      31                     31                      

 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 239                     -                    239                    

 ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE (TAX ROLL) -                      -                    -                     

 DUE FROM GF -                      12                     12                      
 PREPAID EXPENSES 50                       -                    50                      

 DEPOSITS 2,185                  -                    2,185                 

TOTAL ASSETS 898,456$            611,372$          1,509,828$        

LIABILITIES:

 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1,279$                -$                  1,279$               

 ACCRUED EXPENSES -                      -                    -                     

 DUE TO DEVELOPER 17,959                -                    17,959               

 DEFERRED REVENUE (TAX ROLL) -                      -                    -                     

 RENTAL DEPOSITS -                      -                    -                     

 DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 12                       -                    12                      

 

FUND BALANCE:

 NONSPENDABLE:

 PREPAID AND DEPOSITS 2,332                  -                    2,332                 

ASSIGNED:

     THREE MONTH OPERATING RESERVE 210,878              -                    210,878             

     FY16 RESERVE FOR R&R 35,520                -                    35,520               

     FY17 RESERVE FOR R&R 40,900                -                    40,900               

     FY18 RESERVE FOR R&R 41,200                -                    41,200               

 RESTRICTED FOR:

     DEBT SERVICE -                      611,372            611,372             

 UNASSIGNED: 548,376              -                    548,376             

TOTAL  LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 898,456$            611,372$          1,509,828$        

Panther Trace II CDD

Balance Sheet

May 31, 2018



FY2018 VARIANCE

ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES

ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL (BUDGETED NET) 840,213$                840,213$                  854,261$           (a) 14,048$             

INTEREST REVENUE 300                         200                           3,045                 2,845                 

RENTAL REVENUE 3,000                      2,000                        3,763                 1,763                 

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE (ACCESS KEYS & OTHER) -                         -                            2,392                 2,392                 

FUND BALANCE FORWARD (RESERVE CONTRIBUTIONS) -                         -                            -                    -                     

DISCOUNT -                         -                            -                    -                     

TOTAL REVENUES 843,513                  842,413                    863,461             21,048               

EXPENDITURES

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAYROLL 12,000                    8,000                        5,400                 2,600                 

PAYROLL TAXES 918                         612                           413                    199                    

TRAVEL PER DIEM 250                         167                           -                    167                    

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES                           48,000                    32,000                      32,000               -                     

OFFICE SUPPLIES 150                         150                           424                    (274)                   

BANK FEES 200                         133                           111                    22                      

MISC. ADMIN. EXPENSE -                         -                            -                    -                     

MASS MAILING 2,000                      1,333                        -                    1,333                 

AUDITING                                                 4,200                      2,800                        -                    2,800                 

COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES (4%) -                         -                            -                    -                     

REGULATORY AND PERMIT FEES 175                         175                           175                    -                     

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS                                     1,000                      667                           670                    (3)                       

ENGINEERING SERVICES                                     6,000                      4,000                        1,210                 2,790                 

LEGAL SERVICES                                   25,000                    16,667                      3,457                 13,210               

WEBSITE ADMINISTRATION 180                         120                           117                    3                        

PROPERTY TAX & ADMIN -                         -                            -                    -                     

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 100,073                  66,824                      43,977               22,847               

INSURANCE

INSURANCE (PUBLIC OFFICIALS) -                         -                            -                    -                     

INSURANCE (LIABILITY, PROPERTY & CASUALTY; BOND) 12,059                    12,059                      11,616               443                    

TOTAL INSURANCE 12,059                    12,059                      11,616               443                    

DEBT SERVICE ADMINISTRATION

DISSEMINATION AGENT - BONDS 2,000                      1,000                        1,000                 -                     

ARBITRAGE REBATE 650                         650                           650                    -                     

TRUSTEE FEES 5,084                      5,084                        5,084                 -                     

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE ADMINISTRATION 7,734                      6,734                        6,734                 -                     

SECURITY:

SECURITY SYSTEM - (ENVERA CONTRACT) 6,168                      4,626                        4,626                 -                     

SECURITY MONITORING - (EMG) 440                         293                           268                    25                      

SECURITY PATROL - (CBM) 34,200                    22,800                      13,867               8,933                 

SECURITY SYSTEM - MAINTENANCE & IMP. 1,200                      1,200                        5,270                 (4,070)                

TOTAL  SECURITY 42,008                    28,919                      24,031               4,888                 

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT EXPENSES:  

ELECTRICITY 168,000                  112,000                    111,454             546                    

STREETLIGHTING LEASE 24,000                    16,000                      15,355               645                    

WATER 15,000                    10,000                      18,550               (b) (8,550)                

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 1,750                      1,167                        1,142                 25                      

PEST CONTROL 400                         267                           302                    (35)                     

COMMUNICATIONS (TEL, INTERNET,  TECH, ETC) 2,184                      1,456                        1,468                 (12)                     

FACILITY MAINTENANCE  3,000                      2,000                        -                    2,000                 

WATERWAY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM - CONTRACT 19,020                    12,680                      12,680               -                     

WATERWAY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM - OTHER 2,000                      2,000                        9,249                 (7,249)                

ENTRY & WALLS MAINTENANCE 1,200                      800                           325                    475                    

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - CONTRACT 147,084                  98,056                      98,056               -                     

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - OTHER 35,000                    23,333                      6,204                 17,129               

IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE 2,000                      1,333                        3,128                 (1,795)                

DECORATIVE LIGHTS &  MAINTENANCE 7,500                      7,500                        4,478                 3,022                 

SIGNAGE REPAIRS 1,200                      800                           -                    800                    

PET WASTE REMOVAL -                         -                            1,560                 (1,560)                

FIELD MISCELLANEOUS 2,500                      2,500                        6,090                 (3,590)                

TOTAL PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 431,838                  291,892                    290,041             1,851                 

Panther Trace II CDD

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Period from October 1, 2017 to May 31, 2018

General Fund



FY2018 VARIANCE

ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

Panther Trace II CDD

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Period from October 1, 2017 to May 31, 2018

General Fund

CLUBHOUSE & AMENITY ADMINISTRATION:

AMENITY CENTER  MANAGEMENT 43,000                    28,667                      29,820               (1,153)                

PAYROLL SERVICES FEE 1,300                      867                           1,007                 (140)                   

FICA TAXES AMENITY EMPLOYEE - EMPLOYER PORTION -                         -                            2,285                 (2,285)                

AMENITY MANAGEMENT (CELL PHONE & REIMB EXPENSES) 600                         400                           400                    -                     

AMENITY CTR MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENTS 1,500                      1,000                        535                    465                    

CLUBHOUSE  FACILITY MAINTENANCE - CLEANING 3,900                      2,600                        3,140                 (540)                   

CLUBHOUSE FACILITY MAINTENANCE - OTHER 12,000                    8,000                        2,767                 5,233                 

POOL MAINTENANCE 23,900                    15,933                      12,800               3,133                 

POOL PERMITS 425                         425                           425                    -                     

POOL MAINT & MONITORING - OTHER 9,500                      6,333                        2,882                 3,451                 

CLUBHOUSE MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES 3,000                      2,000                        767                    1,233                 

CLUBHOUSE MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE -                         -                            -                    -                     

SPECIAL EVENTS 10,000                    6,667                        164                    6,503                 

PLAYGROUND MAINTENANCE 3,000                      2,000                        -                    2,000                 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 96,476                    96,476                      319,652             (c ) (223,176)            

TOTAL  208,601                  171,368                    376,644             (205,276)            

CAPITAL RESERVES:

CAPITAL ASSET RESERVES 41,200                    2,690                        2,690                 -                     

TOTAL CAPITAL RESERVES 41,200                    2,690                        2,690                 -                     

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 843,513                  580,486                    755,733             (175,247)            

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                             261,927                    107,728             (154,199)            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                             261,927                    107,728             (154,199)            

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 699,717                  699,717                    771,477             771,477             

INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE  41,200                    -                                -                    -                     

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 740,917$                961,644$                  879,205$           617,278$           

a) Assessment budget reported at net and actual collections reported at net. 

c) Capital Outlay expense are over budget due to Landscape Project approved at 8/28/17 Board Meeting

Renewal & Replacement (Reserve)

FY 2016 145,600$                

FY 2017 40,900$                  

FY 2018 41,200$                  

Total 227,700$                

FY17 Pool Finish Per Reserve Study (100,000)$              

FY17 Well Pumps per Reserve Study (10,080)$                 

FY 2018 Pool Filter Grid Replacement (2,690)$                   

Total Reserve Balance After FY18 Reserve Component Exp. 114,930$                

b) Splash pad and running toilets contributed to the increase in water usage from December – March. Repairs have been completed for both item and water is being tracked on a weekly basis to 
assure water levels have returned to normal.



VARIANCE

BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE

ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL (GROSS) 890,088$              818,880$         831,423$             (a) 12,543$                  

INTEREST--INVESTMENT                                     -                            -                      5,061                   5,061                      

DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS (35,604)                 -                      -                           -                             

MISCELLANEOUSE INCOME -                            -                      -                           -                             

TOTAL REVENUE 854,484                818,880           836,484               17,604                    

EXPENDITURES

COUNTY ASSESSMENT COLL FEES 35,604                  -                      -                           -                             

INTEREST EXPENSE                              377,956                190,738           190,738               -                             

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT (MAY 1, 2018) 440,000                440,000           440,000               -                             

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 853,560                630,738           630,738               -                             

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 924                       188,142           205,746               17,604                    

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 924                       188,142           205,746               17,604                    

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -                            -                      405,626               405,626                  

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 924$                     188,142$         611,372$             423,230$                

Note (A)  - Assessments are budgeted at gross and YTD budget is reported at net of discount assessment and county assessment

 collection fees. Actual on roll is reported at net. 

Panther Trace II CDD

DS Fund - Series 2014

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Period from October 1, 2017 to May 31, 2018



 

 Bank United 

(Operating Acct) 

Balance Per Bank Statement 62,038.11$                 

Less: Outstanding Checks (8,539.44)                    

Adjusted Bank Balance 53,498.67$                 

Beginning Bank Balance Per Books 40,895.09$                 

Add: Cash Receipts 100,917.17                 

Less: Cash Disbursements (88,313.59)                  

Balance Per Books 53,498.67$                 

Panther Trace II CDD

Cash Reconciliation

May 31, 2018



Date Num Name Memo Receipts Disbursements Balance

BALANCE 9-30-2017 31,780.84             

10/01/2017 1260 DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - October 4,000.00 27,780.84

10/02/2017 1261 EGIS INSURANCE & RISK ADVISORS Insurance FY 2018 11,616.00 16,164.84

10/02/2017 1262 ENVERA 10/1-12/31 - CCTV Monitoring 1,542.00 14,622.84

10/02/2017 1263 REPUBLIC SERVICES 10/1-10/31 - Solid Waste 107.51 14,515.33

10/06/2017 ACH10062017 Paychex Payroll Fee 54.25 14,461.08

10/06/2017 10058DD ANNA RAMIREZ 9/17-9/30 P/R 1,413.18 13,047.90

10/06/2017 10056DD ANTHONY CUNHA BOS Mtgs - 8/28 & 9/25/17 369.40 12,678.50

10/06/2017 10059 JEFFREY A. SPIESS BOS Mtgs - 8/29 & 9/25/17 369.40 12,309.10

10/06/2017 ACH10062017 Paychex 9/17-9/30 P/R 555.02 11,754.08

10/06/2017 10057DD RICHARD HEWETT BOS Mtg - 9/25/17 184.70 11,569.38

10/06/2017 10060DD Pamela S. Wood BOS Mtgs - 6/28, 8/28 & 9/25/17 554.10 11,015.28

10/10/2017 1020 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to Operating 50,000.00 61,015.28

10/11/2017 1264 ALL PHASE PLUMBING SERVICES Plumbling Repairs 2,450.00 58,565.28

10/11/2017 1265 BOCC 8/23-9/22 - 11518 Newgate Crest Dr 1,010.66 57,554.62

10/11/2017 1266 CBM SERVICES GROUP 9/25-10/1 - Security Guard 506.25 57,048.37

10/11/2017 1267 HOME TEAM PEST DEFENSE Pest Control 100.50 56,947.87

10/11/2017 1268 STRALEY ROBIN VERICKER Legal Svcs thru 9/15/17 192.50 56,755.37

10/11/2017 1269 TAMPA PUBLISHING COM Legal Ad 382.50 56,372.87

10/12/2017 1270 TECO Summary Bill - September 13,378.51 42,994.36

10/12/2017 1271 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape 12,407.00 30,587.36

10/12/2017 1272 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Misc. Pool Maint 1,394.60 29,192.76

10/13/2017 1273 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Pool Maint - September 1,900.00 27,292.76

10/13/2017 Panther Trace  II. Rentals/Misc 594.75 27,887.51

10/18/2017 1274 FLORIDA COURTS, INC. Resurface Tennis Court (50%) 8,430.00 19,457.51

10/20/2017 1275 FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 3rd Qtr Sales Tax 17 148.50 19,309.01

10/20/2017 1276 CBM SERVICES GROUP 10/2-10/8 - Security Guard 499.50 18,809.51

10/20/2017 1277 REMSON AQUATICS Lake & Pond Maint - October 1,585.00 17,224.51

10/20/2017 ACH10202017 Paychex P/R Fee 104.25 17,120.26

10/20/2017 10061DD ANNA RAMIREZ 10/1-10/14 P/R 1,463.18 15,657.08

10/20/2017 ACH10202017 Paychex 10/1-10/14 P/R 309.22 15,347.86

10/24/2017 Panther Trace  II. Rental 25.00 15,372.86

10/27/2017 1278 S.F.C.G. CONTRACTING AND CONSTRUCTI Holiday Lighting 4,477.50 10,895.36

10/27/2017 1279 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Pool Maint - October 1,600.00 9,295.36

10/27/2017 1021 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to Operating 50,000.00 59,295.36

10/29/2017 Bank United Interest 4.37 59,299.73

10/30/2017 1280 FLORIDA COURTS, INC. Resurface Courts 9,740.00 49,559.73

10/30/2017 1281 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Hurricane Prep & Repairs 225.00 49,334.73

10/30/2017 1282 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PROFESSIONALS, INC. Mulch 3,960.00 45,374.73

BANK UNITED EOM BALANCE 10-31-2017 100,624.12           87,030.23            45,374.73             

11/01/2017 1283 DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - November 4,000.00 41,374.73

11/03/2017 1284 CBM SERVICES GROUP Security 10/9-10/22 813.38 40,561.35

11/03/2017 1285 REPUBLIC SERVICES 11/1-11/30 - Solid Waste 181.83 40,379.52

11/03/2017 1286 STRALEY ROBIN VERICKER Legal Svcs thru 10/15/17 545.22 39,834.30

11/03/2017 1287 TECO VOID: 0.00 39,834.30

11/03/2017 1288 TECO 9/17-10/16 - Streetlights 2,170.13 37,664.17

11/03/2017 ACH11032017 Paychex P/R Fee 44.25 37,619.92

11/03/2017 10063DD ANNA RAMIREZ 10/15-10/28/17 - P/R 1,540.59 36,079.33

11/03/2017 10062DD ANTHONY CUNHA BOS Mtg - 10/23/17 184.70 35,894.63

11/03/2017 10064 JEFFREY A. SPIESS BOS Mtg - 10/23/17 184.70 35,709.93

11/03/2017 10065DD Pamela S. Wood BOS Mtg - 10/23/17 184.70 35,525.23

11/03/2017 ACH11032017 Paychex 10/15-10/28 - P/R & BOS Mtg 446.25 35,078.98

11/14/2017 1290 BOCC 9/23-10/22 - 11518 Newgate Crest Dr 1,980.40 33,098.58

11/14/2017 1291 CBM SERVICES GROUP 10/30-11/5 - Security Guard 364.50 32,734.08

11/14/2017 1292 EMG 12/1-2/28 - Monitoring 100.35 32,633.73

11/14/2017 1293 FLORIDA DEPT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNIT Annual Filing  - FY 2018 175.00 32,458.73

11/14/2017 1294 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 11/1-11/30 - Internet/Phone 359.09 32,099.64

11/14/2017 1295 REMSON AQUATICS Lake Maint - November 1,585.00 30,514.64

11/14/2017 1296 TECO VOID: Summary Bill - October (stop payment & Reissue) 0.00 30,514.64

11/14/2017 1297 US BANK Trustee Fees Series 2014 5,083.65 25,430.99

11/14/2017 1298 VANGUARD CLEANING SYSTEMS OF TAMPA CH Cleaning - November 325.00 25,105.99

11/14/2017 1299 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Irrigation Repairs 289.50 24,816.49

11/14/2017 1022 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to operating 50,000.00 74,816.49

11/14/2017 TECO VOID 0.00 74,816.49

11/17/2017 ACH11172017 Paychex P/R Fee 44.25 74,772.24

11/17/2017 10067DD ANNA RAMIREZ 10/29-11/11 - P/R 1,528.71 73,243.53

11/17/2017 10066DD ANTHONY CUNHA BOS Mtg - 12/4/17 184.70 73,058.83

11/17/2017 10068 JEFFREY A. SPIESS BOS Mtg - 12/4/17 184.70 72,874.13

11/17/2017 10069DD Pamela S. Wood BOS Mtg - 12/4/17 184.70 72,689.43

11/17/2017 ACH11172017 Paychex 10/29-11/11 - P/R & BOS Mtg 422.01 72,267.42

11/20/2017 1300 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape & Pump Replacement 24,523.67 47,743.75

11/20/2017 1301 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Pool Maint - November 1,600.00 46,143.75

11/22/2017 1302 CBM SERVICES GROUP Security 11/6-11/19 499.50 45,644.25

Panther Trace II CDD

Cash Register - FY2018



Date Num Name Memo Receipts Disbursements Balance

Panther Trace II CDD

Cash Register - FY2018

11/22/2017 1303 HOME TEAM PEST DEFENSE Pest Control - November 100.50 45,543.75

11/22/2017 1304 TAMPA PUBLISHING COM Legal Ad 284.50 45,259.25

11/28/2017 TECO VOID 0.00 45,259.25

11/28/2017 1305 CBM SERVICES GROUP Security 11/13-11/26 610.13 44,649.12

11/28/2017 1306 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Misc. Repairs for Irrigation meter 150.00 44,499.12

11/28/2017 1307 REPUBLIC SERVICES Solid Waste - December 121.83 44,377.29

11/28/2017 1308 STRALEY ROBIN VERICKER Legal Svcs thru 11/15/17 247.50 44,129.79

11/28/2017 1309 TECO 10/17-11/13 - Streetlights 2,197.69 41,932.10

11/30/2017 ACH11302017 Paychex P/R Fees 44.25 41,887.85

11/30/2017 10070DD ANNA RAMIREZ 11/12-11/25/17 - P/R 1,608.65 40,279.20

11/30/2017 ACH11302017 Paychex 11/12-11/25/17 - P/R 380.73 39,898.47

11/30/2017 Bank United Interest 6.35 39,904.82

BANK UNITED EOM BALANCE 11-30-2017 50,006.35             55,476.26            39,904.82             

12/01/2017 1310 DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - December 4,000.00 35,904.82

12/11/2017 Panther Trace  II. Funds Transfer 275.00 35,629.82

12/13/2017 Panther Trace  II. Rentals/Misc 526.00 36,155.82

12/15/2017 1311 BOCC 10/23/11/20 - 11518 Newgaate Crest Dr 2,063.40 34,092.42

12/15/2017 1312 CBM SERVICES GROUP 11/27-12/3 - Security Guard 162.00 33,930.42

12/15/2017 1313 CLEAN SWEEP SUPPLY CO Cleaning Supplies 133.80 33,796.62

12/15/2017 1314 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 12/1-12/31 - Phone 173.74 33,622.88

12/15/2017 1315 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Clean up around dumpster 50.00 33,572.88

12/15/2017 1316 MHD COMMUNICATIONS Replace Card Reader 470.00 33,102.88

12/15/2017 1317 REMSON AQUATICS Lake & Pond Maint - December 1,585.00 31,517.88

12/15/2017 1318 TECO VOID: Summary Bill - November 0.00 31,517.88

12/15/2017 1319 VANGUARD CLEANING SYSTEMS OF TAMPA CH Cleaning - October & November 790.00 30,727.88

12/15/2017 1320 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Pool Maint - December 1,600.00 29,127.88

12/15/2017 ACH12152017 Paychex P/R Fees 44.25 29,083.63

12/15/2017 10071DD ANNA RAMIREZ 11/26-12/9/17 - P/R 1,528.71 27,554.92

12/15/2017 ACH12152017 Paychex 11/26-12/9/17 - P/R 329.81 27,225.11

12/28/2017 Deluxe Bus Sys. Checks 111.55 27,113.56

12/29/2017 1023 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to Operating 50,000.00 77,113.56

12/29/2017 ACH12292017 Paychex P/R Fees 44.25 77,069.31

12/29/2017 10072DD ANNA RAMIREZ 12/10-12/24/17 - P/R 1,933.54 75,135.77

12/29/2017 ACH12292017 Paychex 12/10-12/24/17 - P/R 507.97 74,627.80

12/31/2017 Bank United Interest 4.45 74,632.25

BANK UNITED EOM BALANCE 12-31-2017 50,530.45             15,803.02            74,632.25             

01/01/2018 1321 DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - January 4,000.00 70,632.25

01/02/2018 1322 CBM SERVICES GROUP 12/4-12/31 - Security Guard 1,231.88 69,400.37

01/02/2018 1323 ENVERA 1/1-3/31/18 - CCTV Monitoring 1,542.00 67,858.37

01/02/2018 1324 REPUBLIC SERVICES 1/1-1/31 - Solid Waste 121.83 67,736.54

01/02/2018 1325 STRALEY ROBIN VERICKER Legal Svcs thru 12/15/17 422.92 67,313.62

01/02/2018 1326 TECO 11/14-12/13 - Streetlights 2,216.70 65,096.92

01/04/2018 1327 CBM SERVICES GROUP 12/25-12/31 - Security guard 459.00 64,637.92

01/04/2018 1328 CC MANATEE DEVELOPMENT, LLC Water Credits 6,250.00 58,387.92

01/04/2018 1329 GHS ENVIRONMENTAL, LLC RAI Responses 495.00 57,892.92

01/04/2018 1330 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE VOID: 0.00 57,892.92

01/04/2018 1331 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape Maint - December 12,257.00 45,635.92

01/11/2018 Panther Trace II Rentals/Misc 806.25 46,442.17

01/11/2018 Panther Trace II Transfer to Debit Card 235.00 46,207.17

01/12/2018 1332 BOCC 11/20-12/19 - 11518 Newgate Crest Dr 3,490.23 42,716.94

01/12/2018 1333 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 1/1-1/31 - Phone 180.44 42,536.50

01/12/2018 1351 VANGUARD CLEANING SYSTEMS OF TAMPA CH Cleaning - January 325.00 42,211.50

01/12/2018 ACH01122018 Paychex P/R Fee 203.25 42,008.25

01/12/2018 10073DD ANNA RAMIREZ 12/24-1/6 - P/R 1,918.55 40,089.70

01/12/2018 ACH01122018 Paychex 12/24-1/6 - P/R 482.53 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1334 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1335 -MULTIPLE- Void - damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1336 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1337 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1338 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1339 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1340 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1341 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1342 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1343 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1344 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1345 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1346 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1347 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1348 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1349 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/15/2018 1350 -MULTIPLE- Void - Damaged 0.00 39,607.17

01/18/2018 1353 BUSINESS OBSERVER Legal Ad 63.75 39,543.42



Date Num Name Memo Receipts Disbursements Balance

Panther Trace II CDD

Cash Register - FY2018

01/18/2018 1354 LLS TAX SOLUTIONS, INC Arbitrage Series 2014 650.00 38,893.42

01/19/2018 1355 FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 4th Qtr. Sales Tax 2017 67.94 38,825.48

01/24/2018 1356 ADVANCED ENERGY SOLUTIONS Repair Marquee & Monument 575.20 38,250.28

01/24/2018 1357 CBM SERVICES GROUP 1/1-1/14 - Security Guard 445.50 37,804.78

01/24/2018 1358 FLORIDA FIRE SERVICE, INC Fire Extinguisher Maint 99.50 37,705.28

01/24/2018 1359 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Pool Maint - Djanuary 2,124.09 35,581.19

01/26/2018 ACH01262018 Paychex P/R Fees 104.25 35,476.94

01/26/2018 10076DD ANNA RAMIREZ 1/7-1/20/18 - P/R 1,541.75 33,935.19

01/26/2018 10074DD ANTHONY CUNHA BOS Mtg - 1/22/18 184.70 33,750.49

01/26/2018 10077 JEFFREY A. SPIESS BOS Mtg - 1/22/18 184.70 33,565.79

01/26/2018 10078DD Pamela S. Wood BOS Mtg - 1/22/18 184.70 33,381.09

01/26/2018 ACH01222018 Paychex 1/7-1/20/18 P/R & BOS Mtg - 1/22/18 439.57 32,941.52

01/26/2018 10075DD RICHARD HEWETT BOS Mtg - 1/22/18 184.70 32,756.82

01/29/2018 1360 CBM SERVICES GROUP 1/15-1/21 - Security Guard 270.00 32,486.82

01/30/2018 1361 CBM SERVICES GROUP 1/22-1/28 - Security Guard 263.25 32,223.57

01/30/2018 1362 GHS ENVIRONMENTAL, LLC Water Permit - Additional Fee 280.00 31,943.57

01/31/2018 Bank United Interest 6.09 31,949.66

BANK UNITED EOM BALANCE 1-31-2018 812.34                  43,494.93            31,949.66             

02/01/2018 1363 DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - February 4,000.00 27,949.66

02/05/2018 1364 BOCC 12/19-1/23 - 11518 Newgate Crest Dr 6,093.37 21,856.29

02/07/2018 02072018 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to Operating 250,000.00 271,856.29

02/08/2018 1365 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape 222,976.23 48,880.06

02/09/2018 ACH02092018 Paychex P/R Fee 60.76 48,819.30

02/09/2018 10079DD ANNA RAMIREZ 1/21-2/3/18 - P/R 1,491.75 47,327.55

02/09/2018 ACH02092018 Paychex 1/21-2/3/18 - P/R 316.77 47,010.78

02/12/2018 Panther Trace  II. Rentals/Misc 808.00 47,818.78

02/13/2018 1366 TECO Electricity 27,428.80 20,389.98

02/16/2018 1367 TECO Summary Bill - October 12,993.94 7,396.04

02/21/2018 02212018 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to Operating 50,000.00 57,396.04

02/21/2018 1376 CBM SERVICES GROUP 2/12-2/18 - Security Guard 270.00 57,126.04

02/21/2018 1377 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Dog Stations (10) 1,999.90 55,126.14

02/21/2018 1378 REPUBLIC SERVICES 2/1-2/28 - Solid Waste 121.83 55,004.31

02/21/2018 1379 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape Maint - February 12,257.00 42,747.31

02/22/2018 1368 CBM SERVICES GROUP Security 533.25 42,214.06

02/22/2018 1369 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 2/1-2/28 - Internet/Phone 188.94 42,025.12

02/22/2018 1370 REMSON AQUATICS Lake & Pond Maint 3,170.00 38,855.12

02/22/2018 1371 STRALEY ROBIN VERICKER Legal Svcs thru 1/15/18 495.00 38,360.12

02/22/2018 1372 TECO Electricity 16,443.83 21,916.29

02/22/2018 1373 VANGUARD CLEANING SYSTEMS OF TAMPA CH Cleaning - February 325.00 21,591.29

02/22/2018 1374 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Irrigation Repairs 572.35 21,018.94

02/22/2018 1375 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Pool Maint - February 1,750.00 19,268.94

02/23/2018 ACH02232018 Paychex P/R fee 60.76 19,208.18

02/23/2018 10080DD ANNA RAMIREZ 2/4-2/18/18 - P/R 1,491.75 17,716.43

02/23/2018 ACH02232018 Paychex 2/4-2/18/18 - P/R 316.77 17,399.66

02/28/2018 Bank United Interest 12.75 17,412.41

BANK UNITED EOM BALANCE 2-28-2018 300,820.75           315,358.00          17,412.41             

03/01/2018 1380 DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - March 4,000.00 13,412.41

03/02/2018 1382 TECO VOID: 12/14-1/16 - 11334 Langworth Hill Ln Pump 0.00 13,412.41

03/02/2018 1381 TECO Electricity 2,119.17 11,293.24

03/05/2018 03052018 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to Operating 50,000.00 61,293.24

03/06/2018 1383 CBM SERVICES GROUP 2/19-2/25 - Security Guard 229.50 61,063.74

03/06/2018 1384 EMG 3/1-5/31 - Monitoring 100.35 60,963.39

03/06/2018 1385 HOME TEAM PEST DEFENSE Pest Control 100.50 60,862.89

03/06/2018 1386 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Install (10) Dog Stations 460.00 60,402.89

03/06/2018 1387 TECO VOID: 0.00 60,402.89

03/06/2018 1388 VANGUARD CLEANING SYSTEMS OF TAMPA CH Cleaning - March 325.00 60,077.89

03/06/2018 TECO VOID: 0.00 60,077.89

03/06/2018 1389 TECO Electricity 2,215.21 57,862.68

03/07/2018 Panther Trace  II. Rentals/Misc 982.50 58,845.18

03/09/2018 ACH03092018 Paychex P/R Fee 60.76 58,784.42

03/09/2018 10082DD ANNA RAMIREZ 2/18-3/3/18 - P/R 1,491.75 57,292.67

03/09/2018 10081DD ANTHONY CUNHA BOS Mtg - 2/26/18 184.70 57,107.97

03/09/2018 10083DD JEFFREY A. SPIESS BOS Mtg - 2/26/18 184.70 56,923.27

03/09/2018 10085DD Pamela S. Wood BOS Mtg - 2/26/18 184.70 56,738.57

03/09/2018 ACH03092018 Paychex 2/18-3/3/18 - P/R & BOS Mtg 470.57 56,268.00

03/09/2018 10084DD SCOTT WARD BOS Mtg - 2/26/18 (2 Mtgs) 369.40 55,898.60

03/12/2018 Elton Alves Repair Damaged Sod 204.00 56,102.60

03/13/2018 1390 BOCC 1/23-2/21 - 11518 Newgate Crest Dr 4,172.56 51,930.04

03/13/2018 1391 CARL'S LOCK & KEY Key Svcs - Broken Lock 127.49 51,802.55

03/13/2018 1392 CBM SERVICES GROUP Security 546.75 51,255.80

03/13/2018 1393 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 3/1-3/31 - Internet/Phone 188.94 51,066.86

03/13/2018 1394 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Misc. Svcs 50.00 51,016.86

03/13/2018 1395 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES Engineering Svcs thru 2/16/18 1,210.00 49,806.86



Date Num Name Memo Receipts Disbursements Balance

Panther Trace II CDD

Cash Register - FY2018

03/13/2018 1396 STRALEY ROBIN VERICKER Legal Svcs thru 2/15/18 1,018.58 48,788.28

03/13/2018 1397 TECO Electricity 14,101.79 34,686.49

03/13/2018 1398 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Mulch 20,900.00 13,786.49

03/13/2018 1399 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Pool Maint - March 1,650.00 12,136.49

03/19/2018 Paychex Refund of Fees 9.39 12,145.88

03/21/2018 1400 CBM SERVICES GROUP 3/12-3/18 - Security Guard 732.38 11,413.50

03/21/2018 1401 MHD COMMUNICATIONS Key Cards 520.00 10,893.50

03/21/2018 1402 REMSON AQUATICS Lake Maint - March 1,585.00 9,308.50

03/23/2018 ACH03232018 Paychex P/R Fee 60.76 9,247.74

03/23/2018 10086DD ANNA RAMIREZ 3/4-3/17/18 - P/R 1,491.75 7,755.99

03/23/2018 ACH03232018 Paychex 3/4-3/17/18 - P/R 316.77 7,439.22

03/27/2018 1403 ALL PHASE PLUMBING SERVICES Repaired Toilets 590.20 6,849.02

03/27/2018 03272018 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to Operating 50,000.00 56,849.02

03/31/2018 Bank United Interest 4.83 56,853.85

BANK UNITED EOM BALANCE 3-31-2018 101,200.72           61,759.28            56,853.85             

04/01/2018 1404 DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - April 4,000.00 52,853.85

04/02/2018 Paychex Deposit 9.39 52,863.24

04/03/2018 TECO QuickBooks generated zero amount transaction for bill payment stub 0.00 52,863.24

04/03/2018 1405 REMSON AQUATICS Aquatic Plants 2,368.75 50,494.49

04/03/2018 1406 STRALEY ROBIN VERICKER Legal Svcs thru 3/15/18 550.00 49,944.49

04/03/2018 1407 TECO Electricity 120.03 49,824.46

04/03/2018 1408 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Pool - Clean Out 125.00 49,699.46

04/06/2018 ACH04062018 Paychex P/R Fee 70.76 49,628.70

04/06/2018 10087DD ANNA RAMIREZ 3/18-3/31 - P/R 1,491.75 48,136.95

04/06/2018 ACH04062018 Paychex 3/18-3/31 - P/R 316.77 47,820.18

04/08/2018 Panther Trace  II. Rentals/Advertising 1,570.50 49,390.68

04/12/2018 1409 BOCC 2/21-3/27 - 11518 Newgate Crest Dr 6,591.94 42,798.74

04/12/2018 1410 DISCLOSURE SERVICES, LLC Dissemination 1,000.00 41,798.74

04/12/2018 1411 ENVERA VOID: 0.00 41,798.74

04/12/2018 1412 FLORIDA PATIO FURNITURE, INC Benches 2,030.00 39,768.74

04/12/2018 1413 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 4/1-4/30 - Internet/Phone 188.64 39,580.10

04/12/2018 1414 REMSON AQUATICS Lake & Pond Maint - April 1,585.00 37,995.10

04/12/2018 1415 REPUBLIC SERVICES Solid Waste - April 121.83 37,873.27

04/12/2018 1416 TECO Summary Bill- March 14,038.13 23,835.14

04/12/2018 1417 VANGUARD CLEANING SYSTEMS OF TAMPA Cleaning Svcs 425.00 23,410.14

04/13/2018 1418 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Pet Waste Removal - March 540.00 22,870.14

04/13/2018 1419 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Pool Maint 4,340.00 18,530.14

04/16/2018 1420 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape 5,884.96 12,645.18

04/16/2018 04162018 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to Operating 50,000.00 62,645.18

04/18/2018 ACH04182018 REPUBLIC SERVICES 3/1-3/31 - Solid Waste 121.83 62,523.35

04/19/2018 1421 FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 1st Qtr. 2018 - Sales Tax 143.54 62,379.81

04/20/2018 ACH04202018 Paychex P/R Fee 60.76 62,319.05

04/20/2018 10090 JEFFREY A. SPIESS BOS Mtg - 3/26/18 184.70 62,134.35

04/20/2018 10091DD SCOTT WARD BOS Mtg - 3/26/18 184.70 61,949.65

04/20/2018 10088DD ANTHONY CUNHA BOS Mtg - 3/26/18 184.70 61,764.95

04/20/2018 10092DD Pamela S. Wood BOS Mtg - 3/26/18 184.70 61,580.25

04/20/2018 10089DD ANNA RAMIREZ 4/1-4/14 - P/R 1,491.75 60,088.50

04/20/2018 ACH04202018 Paychex 4/1-4/14 - P/R 439.77 59,648.73

04/25/2018 1422 CBM SERVICES GROUP Security 1,080.00 58,568.73

04/25/2018 1423 CLEAN SWEEP SUPPLY CO Supplies 198.55 58,370.18

04/25/2018 1424 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Replace HInges on Tennis Court Door 350.00 58,020.18

04/25/2018 1425 STRALEY ROBIN VERICKER Legal Svcs thru 4/15/18 270.00 57,750.18

04/25/2018 1426 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape 16,399.39 41,350.79

04/26/2018 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to Debit Card 463.00 40,887.79

04/30/2018 Bank United Interest 7.30 40,895.09

BANK UNITED EOM BALANCE 4-30-2018 51,587.19             67,545.95            40,895.09             

05/01/2018 1427 DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - May 4,000.00 36,895.09

05/01/2018 1428 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Misc Repairs 1,500.00 35,395.09

05/03/2018 1429 FROSTY'S AIR CONDITIONING, LLC A/C Service Call (replace belt) 225.00 35,170.09

05/03/2018 1430 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC 4/1-4/30 - Pet Waste Removal 540.00 34,630.09

05/03/2018 1431 REMSON AQUATICS Wetland Maint (bring up to compliance) 6,880.00 27,750.09

05/03/2018 1432 REPUBLIC SERVICES 5/1-5/31 - Solid Waste 121.83 27,628.26

05/04/2018 1433 BOCC 3/27-4/20 - 11518 Newgate Crest Dr 760.83 26,867.43

05/04/2018 ACH05042018 Paychex P/R Fee 53.38 26,814.05

05/04/2018 10095 JEFFREY A. SPIESS BOS Mtg - 4/23/18 184.70 26,629.35

05/04/2018 10093DD ANTHONY CUNHA BOS Mtg - 4/23/18 184.70 26,444.65

05/04/2018 10097DD Pamela S. Wood BOS Mtg - 4/23/18 184.70 26,259.95

05/04/2018 10096DD SCOTT WARD BOS Mtg - 4/23/18 184.70 26,075.25

05/04/2018 10094DD ANNA RAMIREZ 4/15-4/28/18 - P.R 1,491.75 24,583.50

05/04/2018 ACH05042018 Paychex 4/15-4/28/18 - P.R 439.77 24,143.73

05/07/2018 1434 CBM SERVICES GROUP Security 965.25 23,178.48

05/07/2018 1435 TECO Electricity 2,229.26 20,949.22

05/10/2018 1436 CBM SERVICES GROUP 4/30-5/6 - Security Guard 492.75 20,456.47



Date Num Name Memo Receipts Disbursements Balance

Panther Trace II CDD

Cash Register - FY2018

05/10/2018 1437 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 5/1-5/31 - Phone 188.64 20,267.83

05/10/2018 1438 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Replace Border 325.00 19,942.83

05/10/2018 1439 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape Maint - April 12,257.00 7,685.83

05/11/2018 05112018 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to Operating 50,000.00 57,685.83

05/16/2018 1440 ADVANCED ENERGY SOLUTIONS Install Well Service & Lights 3,550.00 54,135.83

05/16/2018 1441 CBM SERVICES GROUP 5/7-5/13 - Security Guard 513.00 53,622.83

05/16/2018 1442 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Cleaned out Drain Pipe 50.00 53,572.83

05/16/2018 1443 Panther Trace  II. VOID: Tax Collection Distribution c/o US Bank 0.00 53,572.83

05/16/2018 1444 REMSON AQUATICS Lake Maint - May 1,585.00 51,987.83

05/16/2018 1445 TAMPA PUBLISHING COM Legal Ad 276.00 51,711.83

05/16/2018 1446 TECO Summary Bill - March 13,814.24 37,897.59

05/16/2018 1447 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape Maint - May 12,257.00 25,640.59

05/17/2018 1448 Panther Trace II CDD C/O U S Bank Tax Collection Distribution c/o US Bank 1,900.64 23,739.95

05/18/2018 Panther Trace II. Rentals/Misc 909.50 24,649.45

05/18/2018 ACH05182018 Paychex P/R Fee 27.99 24,621.46

05/18/2018 10098DD ANNA RAMIREZ 4/29-5/12/18- P/R 1,491.75 23,129.71

05/18/2018 ACH05182018 Paychex 4/29-5/12/18 P/R 316.77 22,812.94

05/24/2018 1449 BUSINESS OBSERVER Legal Ad 45.94 22,767.00

05/24/2018 1450 CBM SERVICES GROUP Security 1,569.38 21,197.62

05/24/2018 1451 GHS ENVIRONMENTAL, LLC Summary Report 1,000.00 20,197.62

05/24/2018 1452 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Move Tennis Court Benches 85.00 20,112.62

05/24/2018 1453 MHD COMMUNICATIONS VOID: Install Magnetic Locks System 0.00 20,112.62

05/24/2018 1454 TECO 5/1-5/14 - 12821 Balm Riverview Rd 219.74 19,892.88

05/24/2018 1455 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape 716.67 19,176.21

05/24/2018 1456 MHD COMMUNICATIONS Install Magnetic Locks System 2,140.00 17,036.21

05/24/2018 1457 BUCK'S PROFESSIONAL PAINTING, LLC Paint Clubhouse 3,945.00 13,091.21

05/24/2018 1458 Expel Wildlife Wildlife Removal (Set Up) 850.00 12,241.21

05/24/2018 05242018 Panther Trace  II. Transfer from MM to Operating 50,000.00 62,241.21

05/25/2018 1459 HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HEALTH DEPT. Pool Permit - Clubhouse 275.00 61,966.21

05/25/2018 1460 HOME TEAM PEST DEFENSE Pest Control 100.50 61,865.71

05/25/2018 1461 REPUBLIC SERVICES 6/1-6/30 - Solid Waste 121.83 61,743.88

05/25/2018 1462 TECO Electricity 2,222.58 59,521.30

05/25/2018 1463 VANGUARD CLEANING SYSTEMS OF TAMPA CH Cleaning - May 325.00 59,196.30

05/25/2018 1464 HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HEALTH DEPT. Pool Permit - Interactive Pool 150.00 59,046.30

05/25/2018 Paychex Refund for Overcharge 1.20 59,047.50

05/31/2018 1465 CBM SERVICES GROUP 5/21-5/27 - Security Guard 587.25 58,460.25

05/31/2018 1466 FLORIDA COURTS, INC. Install Pickleball Lines 450.00 58,010.25

05/31/2018 1467 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Repairs 1,860.00 56,150.25

05/31/2018 1468 STRALEY ROBIN VERICKER Legal Svcs thru 5/15/18 302.50 55,847.75

05/31/2018 1469 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Clean Pool Deck 125.00 55,722.75

05/31/2018 10102 JEFFREY A. SPIESS BOS Mtg - 5/21/18 184.70 55,538.05

05/31/2018 10103DD SCOTT WARD BOS Mtg - 5/21/18 184.70 55,353.35

05/31/2018 10104DD Pamela S. Wood BOS Mtg - 5/21/18 184.70 55,168.65

05/31/2018 10100DD ANTHONY CUNHA BOS Mtg - 5/21/18 184.70 54,983.95

05/31/2018 10101DD ANNA RAMIREZ 5/13-5/26/18 P/R 1,491.75 53,492.20

05/31/2018 Bank United Interest 6.47 53,498.67

BANK UNITED EOM BALANCE 5-31-2018 100,917.17           88,313.59            53,498.67             



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 5. 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
1060 MAITLAND CENTER COMMONS BLVD., SUITE 340, MAITLAND, FL., 32751 

 
 
 
 

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
EXPENDITURES 

 
 

 
Dear Board of Supervisors: 

 
Please see attached the Panther Trace II Check Register reflecting all operation 
and maintenance expenditures paid from: 
 

May 1, 2018 thru May 31, 2018 
 

Please note that this does not include expenditures previously approved by the 
Board. 
 
The total amount for items being presented is:   $ 88,313.59 
 
        
 
Thank you! 
 
District Accounts Payable  























































































































































































 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 6. 



          Panther Trace II 
         Community Development District 

 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
       September 30, 2017 

 



 

Panther Trace II Community Development District 
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 
 

                                                          TABLE OF CONTENTS  
       
                                                                                                                                          Page 
  Number 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
 
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS  1-2 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 3-7 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 Government-wide Financial Statements: 
  Statement of Net Position 8 
  Statement of Activities 9 
 Fund Financial Statements: 
  Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 10 
  Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances 
   to Net Position of Governmental Activities 11 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
   Balances – Governmental Funds 12 
  Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures  
   and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
   to the Statement of Activities 13 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
   Balances – Budget and Actual – General Fund 14 
 
 Notes to Financial Statements 15-27 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL  

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 28-29 

  
 
MANAGEMENT LETTER 30-31 
 
INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT/COMPLIANCE 
 WITH SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES  32 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017 

 
 

- 3 - 

Management’s discussion and analysis of Panther Trace II Community Development District's 
(the “District”) financial performance provides an objective and easily readable analysis of the 
District’s financial activities.  The analysis provides summary financial information for the District 
and should be read in conjunction with the District’s financial statements. 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components; 1) Government-wide 
financial statements, 2) Fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to financial statements.  The 
Government-wide financial statements present an overall picture of the District’s financial 
position and results of operations.  The Fund financial statements present financial information 
for the District’s major funds.  The Notes to financial statements provide additional information 
concerning the District’s finances. 
 
The Government-wide financial statements are the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities.  These statements use accounting methods similar to those used by 
private-sector companies.  Emphasis is placed on the net position of governmental activities 
and the change in net position.  Governmental activities are primarily supported by special 
assessments.   
 
The statement of net position presents information on all assets and liabilities of the District, 
with the difference between assets and liabilities reported as net position.  Net position is 
reported in three categories; 1) net investment in capital assets, 2) restricted and 3) 
unrestricted.  Assets, liabilities, and net position are reported for all Governmental activities. 
 
The statement of activities presents information on all revenues and expenses of the District 
and the change in net position.  Expenses are reported by major function and program revenues 
relating to those functions are reported, providing the net cost of all functions provided by the 
District.  To assist in understanding the District’s operations, expenses have been reported as 
governmental activities.  Governmental activities financed by the District include general 
government, physical environment, culture/recreation and interest on long-term debt. 
 
Fund financial statements present financial information for governmental funds.  These 
statements provide financial information for the major funds of the District.  Governmental fund 
financial statements provide information on the current assets and liabilities of the funds, 
changes in current financial resources (revenues and expenditures), and current available 
resources. 
 



 PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017 

 
 

- 4 - 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Fund financial statements include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances for all governmental funds.  A statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances – budget and actual, is provided for 
the District’s General Fund.  Fund financial statements provide more detailed information about 
the District’s activities.  Individual funds are established by the District to track revenues that are 
restricted to certain uses or to comply with legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's 
near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District's near-term 
financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide reconciliations to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental-wide activities. 
 
Notes to financial statements provide additional detail concerning the financial activities and 
financial balances of the District.  Additional information about the accounting practices of the 
District, investments of the District, capital assets, and long-term debt are some of the items 
included in the notes to financial statements. 
 
Financial Highlights: 
 
The following are the highlights of financial activity for the year ended September 30, 2017. 
 

• The District’s total assets exceeded total liabilities by $12,029,534 (net position).  
Unrestricted net position for Governmental Activities was $771,475. Restricted debt 
service was $109,864 and net investment in capital assets was $11,148,195.  

 
• Governmental activities revenues totaled $1,724,983 while governmental activities 

expenses totaled $2,561,608. 



 PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017 

 
 

- 5 - 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Financial Analysis of the District 
 
The following schedule provides a summary of the assets, liabilities and net position of the 
District. 
 

2017 2016

Current assets 811,855$           756,893$          
Restricted assets 590,914             563,457            
Capital assets, net 21,303,066        22,668,386       
    Total Assets 22,705,835        23,988,736       

Current liabilities 633,877             643,074            
Non-current liabilities 10,042,424        10,479,503       
    Total Liabilities 10,676,301        11,122,577       

Net position - net investment in capital assets 11,148,195        12,086,436       
Restricted for debt service 109,864             80,009              
Net position - unrestricted 771,475             699,714            
    Total Net Position 12,029,534$      12,866,159$     

Governmental Activities

Net Position

 
The decrease in total assets is primarily the result of current year depreciation. 
 
The decrease in total liabilities was due to the principal payments on long term debt and the 
reduction in accrued interest payable.  
 
 
 



 PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017 

 
 

- 6 - 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Financial Analysis of the District (Continued) 
 
The following schedule provides a summary of the changes in net position of the District. 

 

2017 2016

Program Revenues
   Charges for services  $      1,707,936  $     1,644,885 
General Revenues
   Investments earnings                 6,108               1,839 
   Other revenues               10,939               8,963 
Total Revenues          1,724,983         1,655,687 

Expenses
   General government               99,858            112,541 
   Physical environment          1,803,740         1,808,210 
   Culture/recreation             270,603            164,443 
   Interest on long-term debt             387,407            394,533 
Total Expenses          2,561,608         2,479,727 

Change in Net Position           (836,625)          (824,040)

Net Position - Beginning of Year 12,866,159       13,690,199     

Net Position - End of Year 12,029,534$     12,866,159$   

Governmental Activities

Change in Net Position

 
The increase in total revenues is primarily due to a planned increase in general fund special 
assessments for the current year.  
 
The increase in culture/recreation expenses is related to the pool and tennis court resurfacing 
projects in the current year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017 

 
 

- 7 - 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Capital Assets Activity 
 
The following schedule provides a summary of the District’s capital assets as of September 30, 
2017 and 2016. 

Description 2017 2016
Land and improvements 577,900$        577,900$        
Infrastructure 34,601,937     34,560,325     
Improvements other than buildings 497,936          497,936          
Buildings 589,978          589,978          
Recreational facilities 705,359          705,359          
Equipment/furniture 272,996          272,996          
Accumulated depreciation (15,943,040)    (14,536,108)   
      Total 21,303,066$   22,668,386$   

Governmental Activities

 
Depreciation totaled $1,406,932 in the current fiscal year.  Current year capital additions to 
infrastructure amounted to $41,612. 
 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The budget exceeded actual governmental expenditures because of lower landscape and utility 
expenditures than were anticipated.   
 
There were no amendments to the September 30, 2017 budget. 
 
Debt Management 
 
Governmental Activities debt includes the following: 

 
• In September 2014, the District issued $11,775,000 Series 2014 Special Assessment 

Refunding Bonds.  These bonds were issued to pay and redeem the outstanding portion 
of the District’s Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A.  Bonds payable 
totaled $10,535,000 at September 30, 2017.     
 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget 
 
Panther Trace II Community Development District does not expect any economic factors to 
have a significant effect on the financial position or results of operations of the District in fiscal 
year 2018. 
 
Request for Information 
 
The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Panther Trace II Community 
Development District’s finances for all those with an interest.  Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to 
the Panther Trace II Community Development District, Development Planning & Finance Group, 
250 International Parkway, Suite 280, Lake Mary, FL  32746 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2017

Governmental
Activities

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash $ 798,325
Assessments receivable 11,198
Prepaid expenses 267
Deposits 2,065
Total Current Assets 811,855

Non-current Assets
Restricted assets
Investments 590,914

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land and improvements 577,900

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 589,978
Equipment and furniture 272,996
Improvements other than buildings 497,936
Infrastructure 34,601,937
Recreational facilities 705,359
Less: Accumulated depreciation (15,943,040)
Total Non-current Assets 21,893,980
Total Assets 22,705,835

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 16,970
Due to developer 17,959
Bonds payable 440,000
Accrued interest 158,948
Total Current Liabilities 633,877

Non-current liabilities
Bonds payable, net 10,042,424

Total Liabilities 10,676,301

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 11,148,195
Restricted debt service 109,864
Unrestricted 771,475

Total Net Position $ 12,029,534

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

- 8 -



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Net (Expense)
Revenues and

Program Changes in
Revenues Net Position
Charges for Governmental

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Activities
Primary government
Governmental Activities
General government $ (99,858) $ 112,643 $ 12,785
Physical environment (1,803,740) 510,847 (1,292,893)
Culture/recreation (270,603) 242,013 (28,590)
Interest on long-term debt (387,407) 842,433 455,026
Total Governmental Activities $ (2,561,608) $ 1,707,936 (853,672)

General Revenues
Investment earnings 6,108
Miscellaneous revenues 10,939

Total General Revenues 17,047

Change in Net Position (836,625)

Net Position - October 1, 2016 12,866,159
Net Position - September 30, 2017 $ 12,029,534

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

- 9 -



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2017

Total
Governmental

General Debt Service Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ 798,325 $ - $ 798,325
Assessments receivable 5,747 5,451 11,198
Prepaid expenses 267 - 267
Deposits 2,065 - 2,065
Restricted assets
Investments, at fair value - 590,914 590,914

Total Assets $ 806,404 $ 596,365 $ 1,402,769

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 16,970 $ - $ 16,970
Due to developer 17,959 - 17,959

Total Liabilities 34,929 - 34,929

Fund Balances
Nonspendable - deposits/prepaids 2,332 - 2,332
Restricted for debt service - 596,365 596,365
Unassigned 769,143 - 769,143

Total Fund Balances 771,475 596,365 1,367,840

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 806,404 $ 596,365 $ 1,402,769

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

- 10 -



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
September 30, 2017

Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 1,367,840

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets not being depreciated, land and improvements, used in
governmental activities are not current financial resources
and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 577,900

Capital assets being depreciated, buildings, $589,978, infrastructure,
$34,601,937, improvements other than buildings, $497,936, recreational
facilities, $705,359 and equipment and furniture, $272,996, net of
accumulated depreciation, $(15,943,040), are not current financial
resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 20,725,166

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, $(10,535,000) net of bond
discounts, $52,576, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (10,482,424)

Accrued interest expense for long-term debt is not a current financial
use and; therefore, is not reported in the funds. (158,948)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 12,029,534

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

- 11 -



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Totals
Governmental

General Debt Service Funds
Revenues
Special assessments $ 865,503 $ 842,433 $ 1,707,936
Investment earnings 4,200 1,908 6,108
Miscellaneous revenues 10,939 - 10,939
Total Revenues 880,642 844,341 1,724,983

Expenditures
Current
General government 99,858 - 99,858
Physical environment 452,866 - 452,866
Culture and recreation 214,545 - 214,545

Capital Outlay 41,612 - 41,612
Debt service
Principal - 430,000 430,000
Interest - 386,636 386,636
Total Expenditures 808,881 816,636 1,625,517

Net Change in Fund Balances 71,761 27,705 99,466

Fund Balances - October 1, 2016 699,714 568,660 1,268,374

Fund Balances - September 30, 2017 $ 771,475 $ 596,365 $ 1,367,840

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 12 -



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THESTATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTALFUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Net Change in Fund Balances -Total Governmental Funds $ 99,466

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays, $41,612, as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation, $(1,406,932). This is the amount that depreciation
exceeded capital outlay in the current period. (1,365,320)

Repayments of bond principal are expenditures in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 430,000

Governmental funds report bond discounts as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets are amortized over the life of
the debt as interest expense. This is the amount of
interest expense in the current year. (2,921)

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds;
whereas in governmental funds, interest expenditures are reported
when due. This is the net change in accrued interest in the current period. 2,150

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (836,625)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

- 13 -



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Special assessments $ 840,213 $ 840,213 $ 865,503 $ 25,290
Investment earnings 300 300 4,200 3,900
Miscellaneous revenues 3,000 3,000 10,939 7,939
Total Revenues 843,513 843,513 880,642 37,129

Expenditures
Current
General government 128,529 128,529 99,858 28,671
Physical environment 475,237 475,237 452,866 22,371
Culture/recreation 212,229 212,229 214,545 (2,316)

Capital outlay 32,728 32,728 41,612 (8,884)
Total Expenditures 848,723 848,723 808,881 39,842

Net Change in Fund Balances (5,210) (5,210) 71,761 76,971

Fund Balances - October 1, 2016 544,747 544,747 699,714 154,967

Fund Balances - September 30, 2017 $ 539,537 $ 539,537 $ 771,475 $ 231,938

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

- 14 -



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 15 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The District's more significant 
accounting policies are described below. 
 
  1. Reporting Entity 
 

The District was established, as a Community Development District, on September 5, 
2003, pursuant to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 
190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the "Act"), by Ordinance 03-22 of the Board of 
County Commissioners of Hillsborough County.  The District was established for the 
purposes of financing and managing the acquisition, construction, maintenance and 
operation of the infrastructure necessary for community development within its 
jurisdiction.  The District is authorized to issue bonds for the purpose, among others, of 
financing, funding, planning, establishing, acquiring and/or constructing district roads 
and stormwater management facilities landscaping, recreation, water, wastewater 
distribution and reuse facilities and other basic infrastructure projects within or without 
the boundaries of the Panther Trace II Community Development District.  The District is 
governed by a five-member Board of Supervisors who are elected by qualified electors 
on an at-large basis for four year terms.  The District operates within the criteria 
established by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. 
 
As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the Panther Trace II 
Community Development District (the primary government) as a stand-alone 
government.  The reporting entity for the District includes all functions of government in 
which the District’s Board exercises oversight responsibility.  Oversight responsibility 
includes, but is not limited to, financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, 
designation of management, significant ability to influence operations and accountability 
for fiscal matters. 
 
Based upon the application of the above-mentioned criteria as set forth by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the District has identified no component 
units. 
 
 
 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 16 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 

  2. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 

   The basic financial statements of the District are composed of the following: 
 

• Government-wide financial statements 
• Fund financial statements 
• Notes to financial statements 

 
   a. Government-wide Financial Statements 
 

Government-wide financial statements report all non-fiduciary information about the 
reporting government as a whole.  These statements include all the governmental 
activities of the primary government.  The effect of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements. 

 
Governmental activities are supported by special assessments, and interest.  
Program revenues are netted with program expenses in the statement of activities to 
present the net cost of each program 
 
In the Government-wide financial statement, amounts paid to acquire capital assets 
are capitalized as assets, rather than reported as an expenditure.   
 
Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as liabilities in the government-wide 
financial statements, rather than as an other financing source.  Amounts paid to 
reduce long-term indebtedness of the reporting government are reported as a 
reduction of the related liability, rather than as an expenditure. 

 
   b. Fund Financial Statements 
 

The underlying accounting system of the District is organized and operated on the 
basis of separate funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting 
entity.  The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and 
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate.  Governmental resources are allocated to 
and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to 
be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 
 
Fund financial statements for the primary government’s governmental funds are 
presented after the government-wide financial statements.  These statements 
provide information about major funds. 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 17 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

  2. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 
   b. Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
 

Governmental Funds 
 
The District classifies fund balance according to the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement 54 – Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund 
Type Definitions. The Statement requires the fund balance for governmental funds to 
be reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent 
to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for 
which amounts in those funds can be spent.  
 
The District has various policies governing the fund balance classifications. 
 
Nonspendable Fund Balance – This classification consists of amounts that cannot be 
spent because they are either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact.  
 
Restricted Fund Balance – This classification includes amounts that can be spent 
only for specific purposes stipulated by the state constitution, external resource 
providers, or through enabling legislation.    

 
Assigned Fund Balance – This classification consists of the Board of Supervisors’ 
intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.  
 
Unassigned Fund Balance – This classification is the residual classification for the 
government’s general fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the 
other classifications.  Unassigned fund balance is considered to be utilized first when 
an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those 
unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. 
 
Fund Balance Spending Hierarchy – For all governmental funds except special 
revenue funds, when restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balances 
are combined in a fund, qualified expenditures are paid first from restricted or 
committed fund balance, as appropriate, then assigned and finally unassigned fund 
balances. 
 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting.  Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be an 
accrual item and so has been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period.   



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 18 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

  2. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 
   b. Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

 
Governmental Funds (Continued) 
 
Governmental funds generally report assets that are available spendable resources 
in the near term and liabilities that are payable from “available spendable resources.”  
Unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of net resources available 
for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

 
Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for 
governmental fund types excludes amounts represented by non-current liabilities.  
Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-term amounts are not 
recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities. 
 
Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the 
fund financial statement in the year that resources are expended, rather than as fund 
assets.  In addition, the proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as an other 
financing source rather than as a fund liability.  Debt service expenditures are 
recorded only when payment is due. 

 
  3. Basis of Presentation 
 
 a. Governmental Major Funds 
 

General Fund – The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund.  It 
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required 
to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Debt Service Fund – Accounts for debt service requirements to retire the special 
assessment bonds which were used to finance the construction of District 
infrastructure improvements.  The bond series is secured by a pledge of all available 
debt service special assessment revenues in any fiscal year and a first lien on all 
acreage of benefited land within the District with the exception of the Phase IV 
property. 
 
 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 19 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
  4. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity 
 
 a. Cash and Investments 
 

Florida Statutes require state and local governmental units to deposit monies with 
financial institutions classified as "Qualified Public Depositories," a multiple financial 
institution pool whereby groups of securities pledged by the various financial 
institutions provide common collateral from their deposits of public funds.  This pool 
is provided as additional insurance to the federal depository insurance and allows for 
additional assessments against the member institutions, providing full insurance for 
public deposits.  
 
The District is authorized to invest in those financial instruments as established by 
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes.  The authorized investments consist of: 
 
1. Direct obligations of the United States Treasury; 
 
2. The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust or any intergovernmental investment 

pool authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperative Act of 1969; 
 
3. Interest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in authorized qualified public 

depositories; 
 
4. Securities and Exchange Commission, registered money market funds with the 

highest credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency. 
 

Cash equivalents include time deposits and certificates of deposit with original 
maturities of three months or less and held in a qualified public depository as defined 
by Section 280.02, Florida Statutes. 

 
 b. Restricted Net Position 

 
Certain net position of the District is classified as restricted on the statement of net 
position because their use is limited either by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation; or by restrictions imposed externally by creditors.  In a fund with 
both restricted and unrestricted net position, qualified expenses are considered to be 
paid first from restricted net position and then from unrestricted net position. 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 20 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
  4. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity (Continued) 
 
 c. Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets, which include land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, 
infrastructure, recreational facilities and equipment, are reported in the governmental 
activities column. 
 
The District defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 
or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  The valuation basis for 
all assets is historical cost.  
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized. 

  
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed.   

   
 d. Budgets 
 

Budgets are prepared and adopted after public hearings for the governmental funds, 
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes.  The District utilizes the same basis of 
accounting for budgets as it does for revenues and expenditures in its various funds.  
The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level.  All budgeted appropriations 
lapse at year end.  Formal budgets are adopted for the general funds.  As a result, 
deficits in the budget columns of the accompanying financial statements may occur. 
 

NOTE B – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

 
 1. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and 

the Government-wide Statement of Net Position 
 

“Total fund balances” of the District’s governmental funds, $1,367,840, differs from “net 
position” of governmental activities, $12,029,534, reported in the Statement of Net 
Position.  This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the 
Statement of Net Position versus the current financial resources focus of the 
governmental fund balance sheet.  The effect of the differences is illustrated as follows. 
 
 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 21 - 

NOTE B – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
 1. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and 

the Government-wide Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
 

Capital related items 
 
When capital assets are purchased or constructed, the cost of these assets is reported 
as an expenditure in governmental funds.  However, the Statement of Net Position 
includes those capital assets among the assets of the District as a whole. 
 
 Land        $        577,900  
 Buildings                 589,978 
 Improvements other than buildings              497,936 
 Infrastructure            34,601,937  
 Recreational facilities                705,359 
 Equipment and furniture               272,996 
 Less: Accumulated depreciation        (15,943,040) 
  Total       $   21,303,066   
 
Long-term debt transactions 
 
Long-term liabilities applicable to the District’s governmental activities are not due and 
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities.  All 
liabilities (both current and long-term) are reported in the Statement of Net Position.  
Balances at September 30, 2017 were: 

   
 Bonds payable  $  (10,535,000)  
 Bond discount, net              52,576   
  Total      (10,482,424) 
 

Accrued interest 
 
Accrued liabilities in the Statement of Net Position differ from the amount reported in 
governmental funds due to the accrued interest on bonds. 

 
 Accrued interest         $       (158,948) 
 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 22 - 

NOTE B – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
 2. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Operating Statements 

and the Statement of Activities 
 

The “net change in fund balances” for government funds, $99,466 differs from the 
“change in net position” for governmental activities, $(836,625) reported in the Statement 
of Activities.  The differences arise primarily from the long-term economic focus of the 
Statement of Activities versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental 
funds.  The effect of the differences is illustrated below. 

   
  Capital related items 

 
When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or 
constructed, the resources expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds.  However, in the statement of activities, the costs of those assets 
are allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  As 
a result, fund balances decrease by the amount of financial resources expended, 
whereas net position decreases by the amount of depreciation and capital outlay 
charged for the year. 

 
  Depreciation      $    (1,406,932) 
  Capital Outlay                  41,612  
         $    (1,365,320) 
   

  Long-term debt transactions 
 
Repayments of bond principal are reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds 
and, thus, have the effect of reducing fund balance because current financial resources 
have been used.  Amortization of the bond discount is reported as an expense in the 
statement of activities, but does not require the use of current financial resources. 
Therefore, it is not reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds.  
 

 Bond principal payments $         430,000 
 Amortization of bond discount               (2,921) 
  Total $         427,079  
 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources; and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds. 

 
Net change in accrued interest payable $             2,150 

 
 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 23 - 

NOTE C – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
All deposits are held in qualified public depositories and are included on the accompanying 
balance sheet as cash and investments. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not 
be returned to it.  The District does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk; 
however, they follow the provisions of Chapter 280, Florida Statutes regarding deposits and 
investments.  As of September 30, 2017, the District's bank balance was $827,563 and the 
carrying value was $798,325.  Exposure to custodial credit risk was as follows. The District 
maintains all deposits in a qualified public depository in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 280, Florida Statutes, which means that all deposits are fully insured by Federal 
Depositors Insurance or collateralized under Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. 
 
As of September 30, 2017, the District had the following investments and maturities: 
 

Maturity Fair Value

First American Government Obligations Fund 23 days* 590,914$           

* Maturity is a weighted average maturity

Investment

 
The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy recently 
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value is the price that would 
be received to sell an asset, or paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs 
used to measure the fair value of the asset. The District uses a market approach in measuring 
fair value that uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions 
involving identical or similar assets, liabilities, or groups of assets and liabilities. 
 
Assets or liabilities are classified into one of three levels. Level 1 is the most reliable and is 
based on quoted price for identical assets, or liabilities, in an active market. Level 2 uses 
significant other observable inputs when obtaining quoted prices for identical or similar assets, 
or liabilities, in markets that are not active. Level 3 is the least reliable and uses significant 
unobservable inputs that use the best information available under the circumstances, which 
includes the District’s own data in measuring unobservable inputs. 

 
Based on the criteria in the preceding paragraph, the investments in First American Government 
Obligation Funds are Level 1 assets.  
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 24 - 

NOTE C – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Credit Risk 
 
The District's investments are limited by state statutory requirements and bond compliance.  
The District has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. As of 
September 30, 2017, the District's investment in First American Government Obligations was 
rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The District places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one fund. The investments in First 
American Government Obligations are 100% of the District’s total investments.  
 
The types of deposits and investments and their level of risk exposure as of September 30, 
2017 were typical of these items during the fiscal year then ended.  The District considers any 
decline in fair value for certain investments to be temporary. 
 
NOTE D – SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUES 
 
Assessments are non-ad valorem assessments on benefitted property within the District.  
Operating and Maintenance Assessments are based upon adopted budget and levied annually.  
Debt Service Assessments are levied when bonds are issued and collected annually.  The 
District may collect assessments directly or utilize the uniform method of collection (Chapter 
197.3632, Florida Statutes).  Direct collected assessments are due as determined by annual 
assessment resolution adopted by the Board of Supervisors.  Assessments collected under the 
uniform method are mailed by County Tax Collector on November 1 and due on or before 
March 31 of each year.  Property owners may prepay a portion or all of the Debt Service 
Assessments on their property subject to various provisions in the bond documents. 
 
Assessments and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  
Only the portion of assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to 
be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.   
 
All unpaid assessments become delinquent as of April 1.  Unpaid assessments are collected via 
the sale of tax certificates on or prior to June 1. 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 25 - 

 
NOTE E – CAPITAL ASSETS  
 
Capital Asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2017 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land  $      577,900  $                 -  $               -  $      577,900 

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 34,560,325   41,612          -                 34,601,937    
Improvements other than buildings 497,936        -                    -                 497,936         
Buildings 589,978        -                    -                 589,978         
Recreational facilities 705,359        -                    -                 705,359         
Equipment 272,996        -                 272,996         

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 36,626,594   41,612          -                 36,668,206    
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Infrastructure (13,444,425)  (1,316,208)    -                 (14,760,633)   
Improvements other than buildings (201,974)       (19,917)         -                 (221,891)        
Building (157,326)       (14,749)         -                 (172,075)        
Recreational facilities (471,245)       (47,024)         -                 (518,269)        
Equipment (261,138)       (9,034)           -                 (270,172)        
Total Accumulated Depreciation (14,536,108)  (1,406,932)    -                 (15,943,040)   

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated, Net 22,090,486   (1,365,320)    -                 20,725,166    

Governmental Activities Capital Assets 22,668,386$ (1,365,320)$  -$               21,303,066$  

Current year depreciation of $1,350,874 was charged to physical environment and 
$56,058 was charged to culture/recreation. 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 26 - 

NOTE F – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The following is a summary of activity of the long-term debt of the District for the year ended 
September 30, 2017: 
 
 Long-term debt at October 1, 2016   $   10,965,000 
  
         Principal payments            (430,000) 
  
 Long-term debt at September 30, 2017  $   10,535,000  
 
Long-term debt is comprised of the following:    

 
Special Assessment Refunding Revenue Bonds 

 
$11,775,000 Series 2014 Special Assessment Revenue 
Refunding Bonds due in annual installments beginning May 1, 
2015 and maturing May 1, 2035. Interest from 2.000% to 
4.125% is due in May and November starting in May 2015.   $   10,535,000 
 
 Bond Discount, Net             (52,576) 

  
 Bonds Payable, Net $   10,482,424  

 
The annual requirements to amortize the principal and interest of bonded debt outstanding as of 
September 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 
 
 

September 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 440,000$      381,476$     821,476$        
2019 445,000        374,436       819,436          
2020 455,000        365,536       820,536          
2021 470,000        354,616       824,616          
2022 480,000        341,691       821,691          

2023-2027 2,685,000     1,450,661    4,135,661       
2028-2032 3,260,000     883,981       4,143,981       
2033-2035 2,300,000     192,225       2,492,225       

Totals  $ 10,535,000  $  4,344,622  $  14,879,622 



PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2017 
 
 

- 27 - 

NOTE F – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT BONDS RESOLUTION TERMS AND COVENANTS 
 
Special Assessment Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2014. 
 
Depository Funds – The bond indenture establishes certain funds and determines the order in 
which revenues are to be deposited into these funds.  A description of the significant funds, 
including their purposes, is as follows: 
 

Reserve Fund – A reserve requirement was established in an amount equal to one hundred 
percent (100%) of the maximum annual debt service requirement, $816,092, of the 2014 
Bonds. The 2014 Reserve Account partially covers this reserve requirement and is funded 
from the proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds.   Monies held in the reserve accounts will be 
used only for the purposes established in the Trust Indenture. 

 
The reserve requirement was met at September 30, 2017 through a combination of cash in 
the amount of $327,553 in the Reserve Fund and a debt service insurance policy.  

 
NOTE G – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government 
carries commercial insurance. 
 
 
 
 

 
 













 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 7. 



GHS Environmental 
   PO Box 55802 

   St. Petersburg, FL 33732-5582 

   727-667-6786 

May 19, 2018 
Panther Trace Community Development District 
c/o Ms. Rebecca Rivas 
District Manager 
Development Planning & Financing Group, Inc. 
1060 Maitland Center Commons Blvd. Suite 340 
Maitland, FL 32751 
 
Re.: Irrigation Well Installation Report 

Panther Trace II 
 
Ms. Rivas, 
 
GHS Environmental Services, LLC (GHS) is pleased to provide this report which 
documents the construction and testing of a 5-inch irrigation well for the Panther Trace II 
subdivision.  The summary report includes information regarding the construction, water 
capacity, and well completion activities. 
 
Please see attached summary report. If there are any questions regarding the submitted 
materials, please contact us at your convenience. 
 
 
Sincerely yours,  
 
GHS Environmental 
 
 
 
Dana J. Gaydos 
Principal 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Submitted to: 
 

Panther Trace II 
Community Development District 

 
c/o Rebecca Rivas 

District Manager 
Development Planning & Financing Group, Inc. 
1060 Maitland Center Commons Blvd. Suite 340 

Maitland, Florida 32751 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 

 

 

 

 

GHS Environmental 

PO Box 55802 

St. Petersburg, FL 33732 

 

May 2018 

 

Irrigation Well 
Installation Report 

Panther 
Trace 

CDD 



Panther Trace II CDD 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018  

i 

Table of Contents 

Page 
Professional Certification    ii 
1.0 Project Narrative    1 
2.0 Project Site Description    2 

2.1 Purpose    2 
2.2 General Location    2 
2.3 Project Site    2 
2.4 WUP Summary    2 
2.5 Hydrogeology    5 

2.5.1 Regional Geology    5 
2.5.2 Regional Hydrogeology    5 
2.5.3 Site Specific Hydrogeology    6 

3.0 Water Usage    7 
3.1 Panther Trace (Irrigation Usage)    7 

4.0 Well Construction & Testing    8 
4.1 Well Specifications    8 
4.2 Capacity Testing    8 
4.3 Water Quality Testing  10 
4.4 Well Piping  11 

5.0 Summary  11 
 
 

List of Figures 
 
Figure 1. Panther Trace General Location Map    3 
Figure 2. Panther Trace II Site Location Map    4 
Figure 3. Well Schematic    9 
 
 

List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A: Water Use Permit (WUP) 
Appendix B: Well Construction Permits, Stipulations, & Completion Report 
Appendix C: Well, Pump, & Meter Information 
Appendix D: Warranty 
Appendix E: Photographic Documentation 
  



Panther Trace II CDD 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018  

ii 

Professional Certification 
 
In accordance with provisions in Chapter 492, Florida Statutes, I hereby certify that I have 
prepared this Well Installation Report and attest that it has been reviewed and approved 
by the undersigned Florida Professional Geologist. 
 
Gaydos Hydro Services, LLC has prepared this report in a manner consistent with sound 
geologic practices and that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the 
profession currently practicing in the same locality under similar circumstances.  
Information provided to Gaydos Hydro Services, LLC by client representatives, agents, 
and other consultants has been accepted in good faith and is assumed to be accurate. 

 

 
 

Douglas L. Crowson, P.G. 
Registered Professional Geologist 

Registration No. 1773, State of Florida 
 

Gaydos Hydro Services, LLC 
Geology Business License GB673, State of Florida 

 
 
 

              May 15, 2018 
Date 

 



Panther Trace CDD 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

1 

1.0 Project Narrative 

 
Panther Trace requested that GHS Environmental Services (GHS) supervise the 
installation of one (1) 5-inch diameter irrigation water supply well.  The well location was 
selected and marked on the ground by GHS staff and the contracted drilling company, 
Baker Well Drilling. 
 
The well system is intended to provide water to meet the irrigation needs of the 
subdivision community.  Capacity testing indicates that the well has sufficient water 
available to meet that demand.  Water quality testing was not deemed necessary and 
therefore was not conducted. 
 
Panther Trace contracted directly with GHS, who in turn contracted Baker Well Drilling 
(BWD) for the well installation.  GHS provided data collection, lithologic description, and 
technical services for well specifications and installation.  Work commenced on February 
27, 2018 and was completed on March 22, 2018. 
 
This report provides text, diagrams, appendices, and photographic documentation of the 
well installation.  In addition, copies of permits are provided to document the work 
performed. 
 
  



Panther Trace CDD 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

2 

2.0 Project Site Description 
 
2.1 Purpose 
 
This report is presented to describe the construction and testing of a replacement 
irrigation water supply well for the Panther Trace II subdivision.  The site has a Water Use 
Permit (WUP) permit specifying annual and peak month usage quantities for three wells.  
The water from this well (DID #3 aka Panther-Balm Well) is to be utilized for irrigating 
common areas that includes trees, grasses, and shrubbery. 
 
2.2 General Location 
 
The general site location of the Panther Trace II subdivision is approximately 0.9 miles 
east of the U.S. Highway 301 and is halfway between Rhodine Road on the north and Big 
Bend Road on the south.  The eastern property boundary is adjacent to Balm-Riverview 
Road and the western property boundary extends into Panther Trace I which is bordered 
by U.S. Highway 301 (Figure 1).  The property lies within Section 03, Township 31S, 
Range 20E in Hillsborough County, Florida. 
 
2.3 Project Site 
 
The project site (Figure 2) is approximately 430 acres in size and ranges in elevation from 
about 80 feet NGVD at the southern site boundary to about 100 feet NVGD at the northern 
site boundary.  The project site is bordered to the south, west, and east by residential 
development.  The northern property boundary contains Lake Lucaya, some residential 
development, and some type of unidentified agricultural or mining activity. 
 
2.4 WUP Summary 
 
The existing WUP for the project site specifies an annual average and peak month 
quantities for the on-site well.  The permit designates the well as DID #3.  For internal 
identification purposes this well is one of three and is referred to as the Panther-Balm 
Well.  The other two wells are referred to as DID #2 (a.k.a. Clubhouse Well) and DID #4 
(a.k.a. Belcroft Well).  DID #3 is a 5-inch supply well and has an annual average of 18,800 
gpd and a peak month quantity of 64,500 gpd.  The quantities for DID #3 are for irrigation 
use to provide water for watering common areas having a combination of trees, grasses, 
and shrubbery.  Figure 2 depicts the location of the well.  The potential withdrawal rate of 
DID #3 is about 100 gallons per minute (gpm), which is a potential quantity of 144,000 
gpd. 
 



 

3 

 
 



 

4 

 
 



Panther Trace CDD 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

5 

2.5 Hydrogeology 
 
2.5.1 Regional Geology 
 
In Hillsborough County, the surficial geology is characterized by Pliocene to Holocene 
quartz sands overlying clayey sands and clays that are thought to be erosional remnants 
of the Hawthorne Group of upper and lower Miocene age.  The surficial geology varies in 
thickness and where present, may be up to 100 feet thick.  The Hawthorne Group is 
generally absent along the coast, but the unit may be as great at 50 to 60 feet thick in 
central and northeast Hillsborough County.  The Hawthorn is typically comprised of green 
to blue-green clayey sands and sandy clays of low permeability, which overlie the Tampa 
Member of the Hawthorne Group.  The Tampa Member consists of sandy to micritic 
limestone sometimes capped by a clayey unit that is difficult to distinguish from the 
overlying Hawthorne clays.  Below the Hawthorne Group is a thick sequence of Tertiary-
age carbonate rocks.  In order of increasing age and depth the sequence is the 
Suwannee, Ocala, and Avon Park Formations.  The thickness of these units is a least 
several hundred feet across Hillsborough County. 
 
2.5.2 Regional Hydrogeology 
 
Groundwater beneath the site is located in three hydrostratigraphic units, the surficial 
aquifer, the intermediate aquifer with associated confining units, and the upper Floridan 
aquifer as defined by the Southwest Florida Water Management District (District, 2000). 
 
The surficial aquifer is the saturated portions of the Pliocene to Holocene age sediments 
that occur in various thicknesses across Hillsborough County.  Generally, groundwater 
from the surficial aquifer system is not utilized for drinking water, but it is used for domestic 
irrigation.  Due to the highly variable nature of the surficial aquifer system, hydraulic 
properties vary widely. 
 
The Intermediate Aquifer is located in the Pliocene to Miocene age sediments and has 3 
productive zones, the Upper, the Middle, and the Lower.  This aquifer is used for both 
domestic supplies and irrigation needs and has aquifer values of wide variation.  The 
Intermediate Aquifer is not present at this project site. 
 
The Floridan Aquifer is found from the Oligocene to Paleocene age sediments.  The 
primary freshwater producing zones come from the Suwannee, Ocala, and Avon Park 
Formations, which make up the Upper Floridan Aquifer.  This aquifer is a fundamental 
source of potable water used for industry, agriculture, and public supplies.  This aquifer 
like the Surficial and the Intermediate have a very wide set of values for aquifer 
characteristics (District, 2000). 
 



Panther Trace CDD 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

6 

 
2.5.3 Site Specific Hydrogeology 
 
The site ranges in elevation from about 85 feet in the eastern portion of the subdivision 
to about 90 feet NVGD in the western portion of the subdivision.  The surficial aquifer is 
the saturated portions of the Pliocene to Holocene age sediments that occur in various 
thicknesses. 
 
While aquifer values vary widely over Hillsborough County, no specific values are 
reported for the surficial aquifer for the project site area. 
 
The aquifer values for the Intermediate Aquifer is project area do not exist.  The nearest 
Intermediate well data, ~5 to 6 miles east-northeast of the site, indicates a transmissivity 
of approximately 21,000 gpd/ft. 
 
The Floridan Aquifer in the Hillsborough County area has sediments from the Oligocene 
through the Paleocene.  They include the Suwannee, the Ocala, and the Avon Park 
Formations.  The sediments at the project site vary in thickness and are composed 
primarily of limestone, dolomite, and trace amounts of sand and clay.  There is a lower 
confining unit separating the Upper and Lower Floridan Aquifer.  The Lower Floridan 
generally contains gypsum and anhydrite and is not a viable source of potable water. 
 
Transmissivity values for wells in the vicinity of the project site range from 109,000 to 
460,000 gpd/ft. at 2 locations, storage coefficient values ranged from 1.4 x 10-4 to 1.0 x 
10-3, and leakance values ranged from 8.0 x 10-2 to 7.4 x 10-4 gpd/ft3 (District Report 99-
1). 
 



Panther Trace CDD 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

7 

3.0 Water Usage 
 
3.1 Panther Trace (Irrigation Usage) 
 
Reclaimed water from Hillsborough County is not available at the Panther Trace location.  
Therefore, the use of the 5-inch water wells is the primary source for irrigation of the lawn 
and landscape.  The total irrigated acreage is 30.3 acres, which includes all irrigated 
acreage within the ROW/open areas. 
 
 
 



Panther Trace CDD 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

8 

4.0 Well Construction & Testing 
 

4.1 Well Specifications 
 
The new irrigation water supply well is identified as DID #3 (a.k.a. Panther-Balm Well).  
Well construction involved permit acquisition, drilling, installation of equipment (pump, 
electric, piping, & appurtenances), and capacity testing.  Baker Well Drilling was 
contracted to execute the work, which was conducted from February 20 through May 6th 
of 2018.  Photographic documentation of the work can be seen in Appendix E. 
 
The irrigation well is 420 feet deep, has 263 feet of 5-inch PVC casing fully grouted in 
place.  The pump is a Goulds 85GS series 21 stage 7.5 horsepower stainless steel 
submersible pump capable of delivering approximately 100 gallons per minute (gpm) or 
more depending on pressures (psi) to the point of delivery.  The pump is set on 126 feet 
of 2-inch new galvanized pipe.  On open flow the pump can deliver approximately 110 
gpm.  A schematic of the irrigation well is shown in Figure 3 and well pump specifications 
can be found in Appendix C. 
 
The general well lithology begins with about 30 feet of sand, followed by approximately 
240 feet of clays, limestone fragments, & limestone of varying colors including tan, grey, 
green, & white.  A very hard layer of chert was found from 270 to 276 feet.  From 276 to 
350 feet granular limestone was encountered.  From about 350 to 420 feet soft, water 
bearing limestone was found.  The approximate depth to water in the Floridan Aquifer in 
this area is about 35 to 40 feet bls.  The well completion report and the lithology for this 
well can be found in Appendix B.  The warranty for the parts and labor for the irrigation 
well is contained in Appendix D.  Appendix E contains photographic documentation of the 
work on the well. 
 
4.2 Capacity Testing 
 
Once the irrigation well construction was completed a specific capacity test was 
performed to measure the capability of the well to provide water.  The pumping rate for 
the test was measured to be 110 gpm by a flow meter.  The pumping test lasted for 1 
hour.  The discharge water was clean and clear of any sediment and water levels reached 
a stable point (no further drawdown or water level drop).  The specific capacity of a well 
is calculated using the formula of quantity of water pumped in gallons per minute divided 
by the amount of water level drop in feet also known as drawdown.  It is expressed as 
SC=Q/DD, where SC is the specific capacity, q is the quantity, and DD is the drawdown. 
 
The specific capacity of the well was calculated to be approximately 12.0 gallons per 
minute per foot of drawdown (gpm/ft.).  To review the actual numbers please see 
Appendix C Well Information. 
 
 



Panther Trace CDD 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

9 

Figure 3.  Well Schematic. 

 
 



Panther Trace CDD 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

10 

4.3 Water Quality Testing 
 
Because the water from the well is only intended for irrigation of common areas which 
include shrubs, grasses, and trees, it was determined that water quality testing was not 
needed.  As a result no water samples were collected for analysis. 
 
However, during the specific capacity test, readings were collected in the field from the 
discharge water.  The following characteristics were observed. 
 
Temperature:  24.3ºC (Degrees Centigrade) 
Conductivity:   488.4 µs/cm (mico siemens per centimeter) 
Total Dissolved Solids: 321.7 ppm (parts per million) 
Salinity:   0.24 ppt (parts per thousand) 
pH:    7.52 
 
4.4 Well Piping 
 
The well appurtenances also includes a flow meter, an air release valve, a sample tap, a 
gate valve, a variable frequency drive (VFD), and miscellaneous fittings.  In addition, there 
is an access port in the well seal to allow for the insertion of water level measuring 
equipment into the well during pumping or non-pumping conditions. 
 



Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

11 

5.0 Summary 
 
In summary, professional hydrogeological services were rendered for the design, 
supervision for the installation, and testing of the irrigation water supply well for the 
Panther Trace Community. 
 
The well system meets or exceeds the requirement to provide approximately 100 gpm 
into the current irrigation piping system.  Capacity testing indicates that the well has 
sufficient water available to meet that demand.  Water quality testing was not conducted 
as it was determined to be un-necessary. 
 
This report provides text, diagrams, permits, lithology, technical data, and photographic 
documentation of the well installation.  In addition, copies of pump, motor, and VFD 
manuals were provided to the client to assist in well operational decisions. 
 
GHS is pleased to have provided you with the services you requested and hope that you 
will call upon us again to meet your water resource and permitting needs. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

Douglas L. Crowson, P.G. 
Independent Hydrogeological Consultant 
Registration No. 1773, State of Florida



Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

A1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A. 
Water Use 

Permit 
#20706.000 



2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, Florida 34604-6899

(352) 796-7211 or 1-800-423-1476 (FL only)

SUNCOM 628-4150 TDD only 1-800-231-6103 (FL only)

On the Internet at: WaterMatters.org

Tampa Service Office
7601 Highway 301 North

Tampa, Florida 33637-6759
(813) 985-7481 or
1-800-836-0797 (FL only)

Sarasota Service Office
6750 Fruitville Road

Sarasota, Florida 34240-9711
(941) 377-3722 or
1-800-320-3503 (FL only)

Bartow Service Office
170 Century Boulevard

Bartow, Florida 33830-7700
(863) 534-1448 or
1-800-492-7862 (FL only)

December 27, 2017

An Equal 

Opportunity 

Employer

Panther Trace II CDD / Attn: Lisa Guillory

15310 Amberly Drive, Suite 175

C/O Dpfg, Inc.
Tampa, FL 33647

Subject: Notice of Intended Agency Action Letter -- Approval

Water Use Permit No.: 20 020706.000

Project Name: Panther Trace II

County: Hillsborough

Dear Sir/Madam:

The Southwest Florida Water Management District (District) has completed its review of the application for 

Water Use Permit No. 20 020706.000. Based upon a review of the information you have submitted, the 

District hereby gives notice of its intended approval of the application. 

The File of Record associated with this application can be viewed at 

http://www18.swfwmd.state.fl.us/Search/Search/SearchWupSimple.aspx and is also available for inspection 

Monday through Friday, except for District holidays, from 8:00 a.m. through 5:00 p.m. at the District’s 

Tampa Service Office, 7601 U.S. Highway 301 North, Tampa, Florida 33637. 

If you have any questions or concerns regarding the application or any other information, please contact 

the Water Use Permit Bureau in the Tampa Service Office.

Sincerely,

April Breton

Manager

Water Use Permit Bureau

cc: Gaydos Hydro Services, Llc/Attn: Dana Gaydos



2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, Florida 34604-6899

(352) 796-7211 or 1-800-423-1476 (FL only)

SUNCOM 628-4150 TDD only 1-800-231-6103 (FL only)

On the Internet at: WaterMatters.org

Tampa Service Office
7601 Highway 301 North

Tampa, Florida 33637-6759
(813) 985-7481 or
1-800-836-0797 (FL only)

Sarasota Service Office
6750 Fruitville Road

Sarasota, Florida 34240-9711
(941) 377-3722 or
1-800-320-3503 (FL only)

Bartow Service Office
170 Century Boulevard

Bartow, Florida 33830-7700
(863) 534-1448 or
1-800-492-7862 (FL only)

An Equal 

Opportunity 

Employer

December 27, 2017

Panther Trace II CDD / Attn: Lisa Guillory

15310 Amberly Drive, Suite 175

C/O Dpfg, Inc.

Tampa, FL 33647

Subject:

Dear Sir/Madam:

Notice of Agency Action -- Approval

Water Use Permit No.:

Project Name:

County:

20 020706.000

Panther Trace II

Hillsborough

The Southwest Florida Water Management District (District) is in receipt of your application for Water Use 

Permit No. 20 020706.000. Based upon a review of the information you submitted, the application is 

approved. A copy of the permit is enclosed for your records. Please refer to the attached Notice of Rights to 

determine any legal rights you may have concerning the District’s agency action on the permit application 

described in this letter.

   

The District's action in this matter only becomes closed to future legal challenges from members of the public 

if such persons have been properly notified of the District’s action and no person objects to the District’s 

action within the prescribed period of time following the notification. The District does not publish notices of 

agency action. If you wish to limit the time within which a person who does not receive actual written notice 

from the District may request an administrative hearing regarding this action, you are strongly encouraged to 

publish, at your own expense, a notice of agency action in the legal advertisement section of a newspaper of 

general circulation in the county or counties where the activity will occur. Publishing notice of agency action 

will close the window for filing a petition for hearing. Legal requirements and instructions for publishing 

notices of agency action, as well as a noticing form that can be used, are available from the District’s website 

at www.WaterMatters.org/permits/noticing. If you publish notice of agency action, a copy of the affidavit of 

publication provided by the newspaper should be sent to the District’s Tampa Service Office for retention in 

this permit’s File of Record.

   

Please be advised that the Governing Board has formulated a water shortage plan referenced in a Standard 

Water Use Permit Condition (Exhibit A) of your permit, and will implement such a plan during periods of water 

shortage. You will be notified during a declared water shortage of any change in the conditions of your Permit 

or any suspension of your Permit, or of any restriction on your use of water for the duration of any declared 

water shortage. Please further note that water conservation is a condition of your Permit and should be 

practiced at all times.



Page 2Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

If you have any questions or concerns regarding your permit or any other information, please contact the Water Use 

Permit Bureau in the Tampa Service Office.

Sincerely,

April Breton

Manager

Water Use Permit Bureau

Regulation Division

Gaydos Hydro Services, Llc/Attn: Dana Gaydoscc:

Encl: Permit

Notice of Rights



December 27, 2037December 27, 2017

WATER USE PERMIT

Individual

SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

NewTYPE OF APPLICATION:

The Permittee is responsible for submitting an application to renew this permit no sooner than one year prior to 

the expiration date, and no later than the end of the last business day before the expiration date, whether or not 

the Permittee receives prior notification by mail. Failure to submit a renewal application prior to the expiration date 

and continuing to withdraw water after the expiration date is a violation of Chapter 373, Florida Statutes, and 

Chapter 40D-2, Florida Administrative Code, and may result in a monetary penalty and/or loss of the right to use 

the water. Issuance of a renewal of this permit is contingent upon District approval.

PERMIT NO. 20 020706.000

PERMIT ISSUE DATE: EXPIRATION DATE:

Panther Trace II CDD / Attn: Lisa GuilloryGRANTED TO:

15310 Amberly Drive, Suite 175

C/O Dpfg, Inc.
Tampa, FL 33647

PROJECT NAME:

WATER USE CAUTION AREA(S):

COUNTY: Hillsborough

Panther Trace II

Most Impacted Area, SOUTHERN WATER USE CAUTION AREA

2.   Drought Annual Average: Annual average limit when less than historical average rainfall if sufficient Water 

      Conservation credits exist in the Permittee's account.

DROUGHT ANNUAL AVERAGE 2     66,800 gpd

1.   Peak Month: Average daily use during the highest water use month.

TOTAL QUANTITIES AUTHORIZED UNDER THIS PERMIT (in gallons per day)

      193,500 gpd

    56,300 gpd

PEAK MONTH 1

ANNUAL AVERAGE

This is a new water use permit for landscape/recreation use. The authorized annual average quantities are 

56,300 gallons per day (gpd), drought average quantities are 66,800 gpd, and peak month quantities are 

193,500 gpd. Quantities are based on the District's irrigation allotment calculation program, AGMOD. This 

permit is receiving quantities from Water Use Permit No. 20004309.008 as part of a Net Benefit. This water use 

permit is located in Hillsborough County within the Most Impacted Area (MIA) of the Southern Water Use Caution 

Area (SWUCA). The Permittee is not using Alternative Water Supply (AWS) sources because none are available 

at this time, however, the Permittee is required to submit a reclaimed water feasibility analysis upon District 

request.

 

Special conditions include those that require the Permittee to meter the proposed District ID No. 3 upon well 

completion and meter District ID Nos. 2 and 4 upon permit issuance, record and report meter readings, 

construct District ID No. 3 to the parameters described in the special condition, submit a reclaimed water 

feasibility analysis upon District request, submit annual crop reports every March 1 for District ID Nos. 2, 3, and 

4, submit a well completion report for District ID No. 3 upon well construction, submit meter accuracy tests for 

District ID Nos. 2, 3, and 4 every five (5) years, submit an overpumpage report upon District request, and 

adhere to the SWUCA Recovery Strategy.

ABSTRACT:



Page 2Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

WATER USE TABLE (in gpd)

USE

ANNUAL 

AVERAGE

DROUGHT

ANNUAL AVERAGE

PEAK

MONTH

 56,300  66,800       193,500Landscape/Recreation

USES AND IRRIGATION ALLOCATION RATE TABLE

IRRIGATED

ACRESCROP/USE TYPE

STANDARD

IRRIGATION RATE

IRRIGATION

METHOD

DROUGHT

IRRIGATION RATE

 30.30 Sprinkler Over Plant        25.00"/yr.        29.64"/yr.Lawn & Landscape

Water use from these withdrawal points are restricted to the quantities given below :

WITHDRAWAL POINT QUANTITY TABLE

DEPTH

TTL./CSD.FT.

(feet bls) USE DESCRIPTION

DIAM

(in.)

I.D. NO.

PERMITTEE/

DISTRICT

AVERAGE

(gpd)

PEAK 

MONTH

(gpd)

IR-W / 2  5     18,800     64,500/ 180      300 Irrigation

IR-E / 3  5     18,800     64,500/ 270      400 Irrigation

IR-C / 4  5     18,700     64,500/ UNK UNK Irrigation

WITHDRAWAL POINT LOCATION TABLE

LATITUDE/LONGITUDEDISTRICT I.D. NO.

 2 27° 48' 37.89"/82° 18' 33.98"

 3 27° 48' 29.30"/82° 17' 27.01"

 4 27° 48' 34.27"/82° 18' 09.65"



Page 3Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY

Location Map

Panther Trace II CDD / Attn: Lisa Guillory

WUP No. 20 020706.000



Page 4Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

STANDARD CONDITIONS:

The Permittee shall comply with the Standard Conditions attached hereto, incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A 

and made a part hereof.

All reports and data required by condition(s) of the permit shall be submitted to the District according to 

the due date(s) contained in the specific condition.  If the condition specifies that a District-supplied 

form is to be used, the Permittee should use that form in order for their submission to be acknowledged 

in a timely manner.  The only alternative to this requirement is to use the District Permit Information 

Center (www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/permits/epermitting/) to submit data, plans or reports online.  There are 

instructions at the District website on how to register to set up an account to do so.  If the report or 

data is received on or before the tenth day of the month following data collection, it shall be deemed as 

a timely submittal. 

 

All mailed reports and data are to be sent to: 

 

Southwest Florida Water Management District

Tampa Service Office, Water Use Permit Bureau

7601 U.S. Hwy. 301 North

Tampa, Florida 33637-6759 

 

Submission of plans and reports:  Unless submitted online or otherwise indicated in the special 

condition, the original and two copies of each plan and report, such as conservation plans, 

environmental analyses, aquifer test results, per capita annual reports, etc. are required. 

 

Submission of data:  Unless otherwise indicated in the special condition, an original (no copies) is 

required for data submittals such as crop report forms, meter readings and/or pumpage, rainfall, water 

level, evapotranspiration, or water quality data. 

(499)

 1.

The Permittee shall construct the proposed wells according to the surface diameter and casing depth 

specifications below.  The casing shall be continuous from land surface to the minimum depth stated 

and is specified to prevent the unauthorized interchange of water between different water bearing 

zones.  If a total depth is listed below, this is an estimate, based on best available information, of the 

depth at which high producing zones are encountered. However, it is the Permittee's responsibility to 

have the water in the well sampled during well construction, before reaching the estimated total depth.  

Such sampling is necessary to ensure that the well does not encounter water quality that cannot be 

utilized by the Permittee, and to ensure that withdrawals from the well will not cause salt-water 

intrusion.  All depths given are in feet below land surface.  For Well Construction requirements see 

Exhibit B, Well Construction Instructions, attached to and made part to this permit. 

 

District ID No. 3, Permittee ID No. IR-E, having a surface diameter of 5 inches, with a minimum casing 

depth of 270 feet, drilled to an estimated total depth of 400 feet.

(240)

 2.

The Permittee shall implement all water conservation measures that are economically, technically, and 

environmentally feasible, including:

1.     Limiting daytime irrigation to the greatest extent practicable to reduce water losses.  

2.     Implementation of a leak detection and repair program as part of an ongoing system maintenance 

program.  This program shall include a system-wide inspection at least once per season.

3.     Evaluation of the feasibility of improving the efficiency of the current water distribution and 

irrigation system or converting to a more efficient system.  This includes implementation of the 

improvement(s) or conversion when determined to be operationally and economically feasible.

4.     Implementation of an irrigation schedule that maximizes the efficiency of delivering the correct 

quantity of water to the root zone at the time it is needed.  This practice shall include the use of tools to 

determine when and how much irrigation water is needed.  Examples of these tools include soil 

moisture sensors, weather/climatic measuring devices, or piezometers to monitor the water table 

elevation.(281)

 3.



Page 5Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

Within 90 days of the replacement of any or all withdrawal quantities from ground water or surface 

water bodies with an Alternative Water Supply, the Permittee shall apply to modify this permit to place 

equal quantities of permitted withdrawals from the ground and/or surface water resource on standby.  

The standby quantities can be used in the event that some or all of the alternative source is not 

available.(363)

 4.

Permittee shall not exceed the quantity determined by multiplying the total irrigated acres by the total 

allocated acre-inches per irrigated acre per season for each crop type. For all crops except Citrus, an 

irrigated acre, hereafter referred to as "acre," is defined as the gross acreage under cultivation, 

including areas used for water conveyance such as ditches, but excluding uncultivated areas such as 

wetlands, retention ponds, and perimeter drainage ditches. For Citrus, an irrigated acre is based on 

74% shaded area, equivalent to 89.4% of the gross acreage minus uncultivated areas such as 

wetlands, retention ponds, and perimeter drainage ditches.

 

An applicant or permittee within the Southern Water Use Caution Area may obtain the total allocated 

acre-inches per acre per season for their crops, plants, soil types, planting dates, and length of 

growing season by completing the "Irrigation Water Allotment Form" and submitting it to the 

District. The District will complete and return the form with the calculated total allocated acre-inches 

and water conserving credit per acre per season per crop, if applicable, based on the information 

provided. The "Irrigation Water Allotment Form" is available upon request.

(427)

 5.

The Permittee shall investigate the feasibility of increasing the use of or using reclaimed water for 

irrigation when notified by the District that reclaimed water may be available in sufficient supply to be 

utilized for this permit.  The Permittee shall submit a report documenting the feasibility investigation 

within six months of the notification. The report shall contain an analysis of reclaimed water sources for 

the area, including the relative location of these sources to the Permittee's property, the quantity of 

reclaimed water available, the projected date(s) of availability, costs associated with obtaining the 

reclaimed water, and an implementation schedule for reuse, if feasible.  Infeasibility shall be supported 

with a detailed explanation.  If the use of reclaimed water is determined to be feasible by the Permittee 

or by the District, then the Permittee shall submit an application to modify this water use permit to 

include reclaimed water as a source of water.  The modification application shall include a date when 

the reclaimed water will be available and shall indicate a proposed reduction in permitted quantities.  If 

the permit application is not submitted by the Permittee, the District may reduce, following notice to the 

Permittee, the quantities authorized with this permit to account for the availability of reclaimed water.

(458)

 6.

The Permittee shall record the following information on the Irrigation Water Use Form that is supplied 

by the District for annual crops for each permitted irrigation withdrawal point, District ID. No(s). 2, 3, 

and 4, Permittee ID No(s). IR-W, IR-E, and IR-C:

1.   Crop type,

2.   Irrigated acres,

3.   Irrigation method (NTBWUCA only),

4.   Dominant soil type per crop or the number of acres per crop on that dominant soil type, and

5.   If used, quantities used for crop protection.

This information shall be submitted by March 1 of each year documenting irrigation for the previous 

calendar year.

(474)

 7.

Any wells not in use, and in which pumping equipment is not installed shall be capped or valved in a 

water tight manner in accordance with Chapter 62-532.500, F.A.C.(568)

 8.

The Permittee shall submit a copy of the well completion reports to the District's Water Use Permit 

Bureau, within 30 days of each well completion.(583)

 9.

The Permittee shall comply with allocated irrigation quantities, which are determined by multiplying the 

total irrigated acres by the total allocated inches per acre per season per actual crop grown.  If the 

allocated quantities are exceeded, upon request by the District, the Permittee shall submit a report that 

includes reasons why the allocated quantities were exceeded, measures taken to attempt to meet the 

allocated quantities, and a plan to bring the permit into compliance. The District will evaluate 

information submitted by Permittees who exceed their allocated quantities to determine whether the 

lack of achievement is justifiable and a variance is warranted. The report is subject to approval by the 

District; however, justification for exceeding the allowed withdrawal quantity does not constitute a 

10.



Page 6Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

waiver of the District's authority to enforce the terms and conditions of the permit.(651)

This Permit is located within the Southern Water Use Caution Area (SWUCA). Pursuant to Section 

373.0421, Florida Statutes, the SWUCA is subject to a minimum flows and levels recovery strategy, 

which became effective on January 1, 2007. The Governing Board may amend the recovery strategy, 

including amending applicable water use permitting rules based on an annual assessment of water 

resource criteria, cumulative water withdrawal impacts, and on a recurring five-year evaluation of the 

status of the recovery strategy up to the year 2025 as described in Chapter 40D-80, Florida 

Administrative Code. This Permit is subject to modification to comply with new rules.(652)

11.

The following proposed withdrawal facilities shall be metered within 90 days of completion of 

construction of the facilities:  District ID No(s). 3, Permittee ID No(s). IR-E.  Monthly meter reading and 

reporting, as well as meter accuracy checks every five years shall be in accordance with instructions in 

Exhibit B, Metering Instructions, attached to and made part of this permit.(718)

12.

The following existing, but previously un-metered withdrawal facilities shall be metered upon permit 

issuance: District ID No(s). 2 and 4, Permittee ID No(s). IR-W and IW-C.  Monthly meter reading and 

reporting, as well as meter accuracy checks every five years shall be in accordance with instructions in 

Exhibit B, Metering Instructions, attached to and made part of this permit.(720)

13.



Page 7Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

40D-2

Exhibit A

WATER USE PERMIT STANDARD CONDITIONS

With advance notice to the Permittee, District staff with proper identification shall have permission to 

enter, inspect, collect samples, take measurements, observe permitted and related facilities and collect 

and document any information deemed necessary to determine compliance with the approved plans, 

specifications and conditions of this permit. The Permittee shall either accompany District staff onto the 

property or make provision for access onto the property. 

 1.

When necessary to analyze impacts to the water resource or existing users, the District shall require the 

Permittee to install flow metering or other measuring devices to record withdrawal quantities and submit 

the data to the District.

 2.

A District identification tag shall be prominently displayed at each withdrawal point that is required by the 

District to be metered or for which withdrawal quantities are required to be reported to the District, by 

permanently affixing the tag to the withdrawal facility.

 3.

The Permittee shall mitigate any adverse impact to environmental features or offsite land uses as a result 

of withdrawals. When adverse impacts occur or are imminent, the District shall require the Permittee to 

mitigate the impacts. Examples of adverse impacts include the following:

A.     Significant reduction in levels or flows in water bodies such as lakes, 

        impoundments, wetlands, springs, streams or other watercourses; or

B.     Damage to crops and other vegetation causing financial harm to the owner; 

        and

C.     Damage to the habitat of endangered or threatened species.

 4.

The Permittee shall mitigate any adverse impact to existing legal uses caused by withdrawals. When 

adverse impacts occur or are imminent, the District may require the Permittee to mitigate the impacts. 

Adverse impacts include:

 

A.    A reduction in water levels which impairs the ability of a well to produce water;

B.    Significant reduction in levels or flows in water bodies such as lakes, impoundments,

       wetlands, springs, streams or other watercourses; or

C.    Significant inducement of natural or manmade contaminants into a water supply

       or into a usable portion of an aquifer or water body.

 5.

Permittee shall notify the District in writing within 30 days of any sale, transfer, or conveyance of 

ownership or any other loss of permitted legal control of the Project and / or related facilities from which 

the permitted consumptive use is made.  Where Permittee’s control of the land subject to the permit was 

demonstrated through a lease, the Permittee must either submit documentation showing that it continues 

to have legal control or transfer control of the permitted system / project to the new landowner or new 

lessee.  All transfers of ownership are subject to the requirements of Rule 40D-1.6105, F.A.C.  

Alternatively, the Permittee may surrender the consumptive use permit to the District, thereby 

relinquishing the right to conduct any activities under the permit.

 6.

All withdrawals authorized by this WUP shall be implemented as conditioned by this permit, including any 

documents submitted as part of the permit application incorporated by reference in a permit condition.  

This permit is subject to review and modification, enforcement action, or revocation, in whole or in 

part, pursuant to Section 373.136 or 373.243, F.S.

 7.

This permit does not convey to the Permittee any property rights or privileges other than those specified 

herein, nor relieve the Permittee from complying with any applicable local government, state, or federal 

law, rule, or ordinance.

 8.

The Permittee shall cease or reduce surface water withdrawal as directed by the District if water levels in 

lakes fall below the applicable minimum water level established in Chapter 40D-8, F.A.C., or rates of flow 

in streams fall below the minimum levels established in Chapter 40D-8, F.A.C.

 9.

The Permittee shall cease or reduce withdrawal as directed by the District if water levels in aquifers fall 

below the minimum levels established by the Governing Board.

10.



Page 8Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

A Permittee may seek modification of any term of an unexpired permit.  The Permittee is advised that 

section 373.239, F.S., and Rule 40D-2.331, F.A.C., are applicable to permit modifications.

11.

The Permittee shall practice water conservation to increase the efficiency of transport, application, and 

use, as well as to decrease waste and to minimize runoff from the property. At such time as the Governing 

Board adopts specific conservation requirements for the Permittee’s water use classification, this permit 

shall be subject to those requirements upon notice and after a reasonable period for compliance. 

12.

The District may establish special regulations for Water-Use Caution Areas. At such time as the 

Governing Board adopts such provisions, this permit shall be subject to them upon notice and after a 

reasonable period for compliance.

13.

Nothing in this permit should be construed to limit the authority of the District to declare a water shortage 

and issue orders pursuant to chapter 373, F.S.   In the event of a declared water shortage, the Permittee 

must adhere to the water shortage restrictions, as specified by the District. The Permittee is advised that 

during a water shortage, reports shall be submitted as required by District rule or order.

14.

This permit is issued based on information provided by the Permittee demonstrating that the use of water 

is reasonable and beneficial, consistent with the public interest, and will not interfere with any existing 

legal use of water. If, during the term of the permit, it is determined by the District that a statement in the 

application and in the supporting data are found to be untrue and inaccurate, the use is not reasonable 

and beneficial, in the public interest, or does impact an existing legal use of water, the Governing Board 

shall modify this permit or shall revoke this permit following notice and hearing, pursuant to sections 

373.136 or 373.243, F.S.  The Permittee shall immediately notify the District in writing of any previously 

submitted information that is later discovered to be inaccurate.

15.

Within the Southern Water Use Caution Area, if the District determines that significant water quantity or 

quality changes, impacts to existing legal uses, or adverse environmental impacts are occurring, the 

District, upon reasonable notice to the Permittee, including a statement of facts upon which the District 

based its determination, may reconsider the quantities permitted or other conditions of the permit as 

appropriate to address the change or impact, but only after an opportunity for the Permittee to resolve or 

mitigate the change or impact or to request a hearing.

16.

All permits are contingent upon continued ownership or legal control of all property on which pumps, 

wells, diversions or other water withdrawal facilities are located.

17.



Page 9Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

Exhibit B 

Instructions

METERING INSTRUCTIONS 

The Permittee shall meter withdrawals from surface waters and/or the ground water resources, and meter readings from 

each withdrawal facility shall be recorded on a monthly basis within the last week of the month. The meter reading(s) shall 

be reported to the Water Use Permit Bureau on or before the tenth day of the following month for monthly reporting 

frequencies. For bi-annual reporting, the data shall be recorded on a monthly basis and reported on or before the tenth day 

of the month following the sixth month of recorded data. The Permittee shall submit meter readings online using the Permit 

Information Center at www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/permits/epermitting/ or on District supplied scanning forms unless another 

arrangement for submission of this data has been approved by the District. Submission of such data by any other 

unauthorized form or mechanism may result in loss of data and subsequent delinquency notifications.  Call the Water Use 

Permit Bureau in Tampa at (813) 985-7481 if difficulty is encountered.

The meters shall adhere to the following descriptions and shall be installed or maintained as follows:

1. The meter(s) shall be non-resettable, totalizing flow meter(s) that have a totalizer of sufficient magnitude to retain 

total gallon data for a minimum of the three highest consecutive months permitted quantities. If other measuring 

device(s) are proposed, prior to installation, approval shall be obtained in writing from the Water Use Permit Bureau 

Chief.

2. The Permittee shall report non-use on all metered standby withdrawal facilities on the scanning form or approved 

alternative reporting method.

3. If a metered withdrawal facility is not used during any given month, the meter report shall be submitted to the 

District indicating the same meter reading as was submitted the previous month.

4. The flow meter(s) or other approved device(s) shall have and maintain an accuracy within five percent of the actual 

flow as installed.

5. Meter accuracy testing requirements:

              A. For newly metered withdrawal points, the flow meter installation shall be designed for inline field access for 

meter accuracy testing.

              B.   The meter shall be tested for accuracy on-site, as installed according to the Flow Meter Accuracy Test 

Instructions in this Exhibit B, every five years in the assigned month for the county, beginning from the 

date of its installation for new meters or from the date of initial issuance of this permit containing the 

metering condition with an accuracy test requirement for existing meters.

              C.   The testing frequency will be decreased if the Permittee demonstrates to the satisfaction of the District 

that a longer period of time for testing is warranted.

              D.   The test will be accepted by the District only if performed by a person knowledgeable in the testing 

equipment used.

              E.   If the actual flow is found to be greater than 5% different from the measured flow, within 30 days, the 

Permittee shall have the meter re-calibrated, repaired, or replaced, whichever is necessary.  

Documentation of the test and a certificate of re-calibration, if applicable, shall be submitted within 30 days 

of each test or re-calibration.

6. The meter shall be installed according to the manufacturer’s instructions for achieving accurate flow to the 

specifications above, or it shall be installed in a straight length of pipe where there is at least an upstream length 

equal to ten (10) times the outside pipe diameter and a downstream length equal to two (2) times the outside pipe 

diameter. Where there is not at least a length of ten diameters upstream available, flow straightening vanes shall be 

used in the upstream line.

7. Broken or malfunctioning meter:

A. If the meter or other flow measuring device malfunctions or breaks, the Permittee shall notify the District 

within 15 days of discovering the malfunction or breakage.

B. The meter must be replaced with a repaired or new meter, subject to the same specifications given above, 

within 30 days of the discovery.

C. If the meter is removed from the withdrawal point for any other reason, it shall be replaced with another 

meter having the same specifications given above, or the meter shall be reinstalled within 30 days of its 

removal from the withdrawal. In either event, a fully functioning meter shall not be off the withdrawal point for 

more than 60 consecutive days.

8. While the meter is not functioning correctly, the Permittee shall keep track of the total amount of time the 

withdrawal point was used for each month and multiply those minutes times the pump capacity (in gallons per 

minute) for total gallons. The estimate of the number of gallons used each month during that period shall be 

submitted on District scanning forms and noted as estimated per instructions on the form. If the data is submitted 



Page 10Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

by another approved method, the fact that it is estimated must be indicated. The reason for the necessity to 

estimate pumpage shall be reported with the estimate.

9. In the event a new meter is installed to replace a broken meter, it and its installation shall meet the specifications 

of this condition. The permittee shall notify the District of the replacement with the first submittal of meter readings 

from the new meter.

FLOW METER ACCURACY TEST INSTRUCTIONS

1. Accuracy Test Due Date - The Permittee is to schedule their accuracy test according to the following 

schedule:

For existing metered withdrawal points, add five years to the previous test year, and make the test in the 

month assigned to your county.

For withdrawal points for which metering is added for the first time, the test is to be scheduled five years 

from the issue year in the month assigned to your county. 

For proposed withdrawal points, the test date is five years from the completion date of the withdrawal point 

in the month assigned to your county.

For the Permittee’s convenience, if there are multiple due-years for meter accuracy testing because of the 

timing of the installation and/or previous accuracy tests of meters, the Permittee can submit a request in 

writing to the Water Use Permit Bureau Chief for one specific year to be assigned as the due date year for 

meter testing. Permittees with many meters to test may also request the tests to be grouped into one year 

or spread out evenly over two to three years.

The months for accuracy testing of meters are assigned by county.  The Permittee is requested but not 

required to have their testing done in the month assigned to their county.  This is to have sufficient District 

staff available for assistance. 

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

January 

February 

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Hillsborough

Manatee, Pasco

Polk (for odd numbered permits)*

Polk (for even numbered permits)*

Highlands

Hardee, Charlotte

None or Special Request

None or Special Request

Desoto, Sarasota

Citrus, Levy, Lake

Hernando, Sumter, Marion

Pinellas

* The permittee may request their multiple permits be tested in the same month.

Accuracy Test Requirements: The Permittee shall test the accuracy of flow meters on permitted 

withdrawal points as follows: 

2.

The equipment water temperature shall be set to 72 degrees Fahrenheit for ground water, and to the 

measured water temperature for other water sources. 

A minimum of two separate timed tests shall be performed for each meter .  Each timed test shall consist of 

measuring flow using the test meter and the installed meter for a minimum of four minutes duration. If the two 

tests do not yield consistent results, additional tests shall be performed for a minimum of eight minutes or 

longer per test until consistent results are obtained. 

If the installed meter has a rate of flow, or large multiplier that does not allow for consistent results to be 

obtained with four- or eight-minute tests, the duration of the test shall be increased as necessary to obtain 

accurate and consistent results with respect to the type of flow meter installed. 

The results of two consistent tests shall be averaged, and the result will be considered the test result for the 

meter being tested. This result shall be expressed as a plus or minus percent (rounded to the nearest 

one-tenth percent) accuracy of the installed meter relative to the test meter. The percent accuracy indicates 

the deviation (if any), of the meter being tested from the test meter. 

A.

B.

C.

D.

3. Accuracy Test Report:  The Permittees shall demonstrate that the results of the meter test(s) are accurate 

by submitting the following information within 30 days of the test:

A completed Flow Meter Accuracy Verification Form, Form LEG-R.014.00 (07/08) for each flow meter tested. 

This form can be obtained from the District’s website (www.watermatters.org) under “ePermitting and Rules” 

for Water Use Permits. 

A.



Page 11Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

A printout of data that was input into the test equipment, if the test equipment is capable of creating such a 

printout;

A statement attesting that the manufacturer of the test equipment , or an entity approved or authorized by the 

manufacturer, has trained the operator to use the specific model test equipment used for testing; 

The date of the test equipment’s most recent calibration that demonstrates that it was calibrated within the 

previous twelve months, and the test lab's National Institute of Standards and Testing (N.I.S.T.) traceability 

reference number. 

A diagram showing the precise location on the pipe where the testing equipment was mounted shall be 

supplied with the form. This diagram shall also show the pump, installed meter, the configuration (with all 

valves, tees, elbows, and any other possible flow disturbing devices) that exists between the pump and the 

test location clearly noted with measurements. If flow straightening vanes are utilized, their location(s) shall 

also be included in the diagram. 

A picture of the test location, including the pump, installed flow meter, and the measuring device, or for sites 

where the picture does not include all of the items listed above, a picture of the test site with a notation of 

distances to these items.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

WELL CONSTRUCTION INSTRUCTIONS 

All wells proposed to be constructed shall be drilled and constructed as specified below:

1. All well casing (including liners and/or pipe) must be sealed to the depth specified in the permit condition.

2. The proposed well(s) shall be constructed of materials that are resistant to degradation of the casing/grout due to 

interaction with the water of lesser quality.  A minimum grout thickness of two (2) inches is required on wells four 

(4) inches or more in diameter.

3. A minimum of twenty (20) feet overlap and two (2) centralizers is required for Public Supply wells and all wells six 

(6) inches or more in diameter.

4. Any variation from estimated, maximum or minimum total depths; maximum or minimum casing depths; well 

location or casing diameter specified in the condition requires advanced approval  by the Water Use Permit Bureau 

Chief, or the Well Construction Section Manager.  

5. The Permittee is notified that a proposal to significantly change any of these well construction specifications may 

require permit modification if the District determines that such a change would result in significantly greater 

withdrawal impacts than those considered for this Permit.

6. The finished well casing depth shall not vary from these specifications by greater than ten (10) percent unless 

advance approval is granted by the Water Use Permit Bureau Chief , or the Well Construction Section Manager.

April Breton

Authorized Signature

SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

This permit, issued under the provision of Chapter 373, Florida Statues and Florida Administrative Code 

40D-2, authorizes the Permittee to withdraw the quantities outlined above, and may require various 

activities to be performed by the Permittee as described in the permit, including the Special Conditions. 

The permit does not convey to the Permittee any property rights or privileges other than those specified 

herein, nor relieve the Permittee from complying with any applicable local government, state, or federal 

law, rule, or ordinance.



Page 12Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

Notice of Rights

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING

1. You or any person whose substantial interests are or may be affected by the District 's intended or proposed 

action may request an administrative hearing on that action by filing a written petition in accordance with 

Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes (F.S.), Uniform Rules of Procedure Chapter 28-106, Florida 

Administrative Code (F.A.C.) and District Rule 40D-1.1010, F.A.C.  Unless otherwise provided by law, a 

petition for administrative hearing must be filed with (received by) the District within 21 days of receipt of 

written notice of agency action. "Written notice" means either actual written notice, or newspaper publication 

of notice, that the District has taken or intends to take agency action.  "Receipt of written notice" is deemed to 

be the fifth day after the date on which actual notice is deposited in the United States mail, if notice is mailed 

to you, or the date that actual notice is issued, if sent to you by electronic mail or delivered to you, or the date 

that notice is published in a newspaper, for those persons to whom the District does not provide actual notice.

2. Pursuant to Subsection 373.427(2)(c), F.S., for notices of intended or proposed agency action on a 

consolidated application for an environmental resource permit and use of sovereignty submerged lands 

concurrently reviewed by the District, a petition for administrative hearing must be filed with (received by) the 

District within 14 days of receipt of written notice.

3. Pursuant to Rule 62-532.430, F.A.C., for notices of intent to deny a well construction permit, a petition for 

administrative hearing must be filed with (received by) the District within 30 days of receipt of written notice of 

intent to deny.

4. Any person who receives written notice of an agency decision and who fails to file a written request for a 

hearing within 21 days of receipt or other period as required by law waives the right to request a hearing on 

such matters.

5. Mediation pursuant to Section 120.573, F.S., to settle an administrative dispute regarding District intended or 

proposed action is not available prior to the filing of a petition for hearing.

6. A request or petition for administrative hearing must comply with the requirements set forth in Chapter 28.106, 

F.A.C.  A request or petition for a hearing must: (1) explain how the substantial interests of each person 

requesting the hearing will be affected by the District 's intended action or proposed action, (2) state all 

material facts disputed by the person requesting the hearing or state that there are no material facts in 

dispute, and (3) otherwise comply with Rules 28-106.201 and 28-106.301, F.A.C.  Chapter 28-106, F.A.C. can 

be viewed at www.flrules.org or at the District's website at www.WaterMatters.org/permits/rules.

7. A petition for administrative hearing is deemed filed upon receipt of the complete petition by the District Agency 

Clerk at the District's Tampa Service Office during normal business hours, which are 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 

Monday through Friday, excluding District holidays.  Filings with the District Agency Clerk may be made by 

mail, hand-delivery or facsimile transfer (fax).  The District does not accept petitions for administrative hearing 

by electronic mail.  Mailed filings must be addressed to, and hand-delivered filings must be delivered to, the 

Agency Clerk, Southwest Florida Water Management District, 7601 Highway 301 North,Tampa,FL 33637-

6759.  Faxed filings must be transmitted to the District Agency Clerk at (813) 367-9776.  Any petition not 

received during normal business hours shall be filed as of 8:00 a.m. on the next business day.  The District's 

acceptance of faxed petitions for filing is subject to certain conditions set forth in the District's Statement of 

Agency Organization and Operation, available for viewing at www.WaterMatters.org/about.



Page 13Permit No: 20 020706.000 December 27, 2017

JUDICIAL REVIEW

1. Pursuant to Sections 120.60(3) and 120.68, F.S., a party who is adversely affected by District action may seek 

judicial review of the District's action.  Judicial review shall be sought in the Fifth District Court of Appeal or in the 

appellate district where a party resides or as otherwise provided by law.

2. All proceedings shall be instituted by filing an original notice of appeal with the District Agency Clerk within 30 

days after the rendition of the order being appealed, and a copy of the notice of appeal, accompanied by any 

Rules of Appellate Procedure (Fla. R. App. P.).  Pursuant to Fla. R. App. P. 9.020(h), an order is rendered when 

a signed written order is filed with the clerk of the lower tribunal.

filing fees prescribed by law, with the clerk of the court, in accordance with  Rules 9.110 and 9.190 of the Florida



Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

B1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B. 
Well 

Permits 

















Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

D1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C. 
Well Pump & 

Meter 
Information 























  

    
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                                                                                    101 Regency Pkwy 

              Mansfield, TX 76063 
  800-765-6518  Toll Free 
      817-842-8000  Office 

      817-842-8100  Fax 
 
 
 

March 29, 2018 
 
 
All multi-jet water meters manufactured, tested and shipped by Master Meter, Inc., are 
tested according to the standards published by the American Water Works 
Association. This meter would be covered by ANSI/AWWA Standard C708 for cold 
water meters – Multi-jet type. This standard states; “The quantity registered on the 
meter dial shall not be less than 98.5 percent and not more than 101.5 percent of the 
water actually passed through the meter while the meter is being tested at any rate of 
flow within the normal test flow limits. At the minimum flow rate the meter shall 
register not less than 97 percent and not more than 103 percent of the water that 
actually passes through it”. 
 
Multi-jet meters from 5/8” – 2” are tested on a Master Meter custom made gravimetric 
test bench to confirm all meters conform to these accuracy standards. Your meter test 
results are: 
 
 Meter 
Serial #  

Low  Intermediate  High  Test Date  Catalog Number  

8932233    99.7       100   98.8       7/21/2017    M24-A00-A03-0101A-1 
8943099   100.3       100   99        10/23/2017    M24-A00-A03-0101A-1 
 
Please feel free to contact our office if you have any questions concerning the above. 
  
Sincerely,  
 
 

Lori Crow 
      

Lori Crow 
Customer Service Rep 
Master Meter, Inc. 





Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

D1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX D. 
Warranty 

Letter 





Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

E1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX E. 
Pictures 

  



Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

E1 

Photo #1: Drill Rig. 

 
 

Photo #2: Drilling Bit. 

 



Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

E1 

Photo #3.  5-Inch Production Casing. 

 
 

Photo #4.  Grouting the Casing. 

 
 



Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

E1 

Photo #5:  Curing the Grout. 

 
 

Photo #6:  Well Development. 

 



Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

E1 

Photo #7:  Installing the Pump. 

 
  



Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

E1 

Photo #8:  Pump Manufacturer. 

 
 

  



Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

E1 

Photo 9:  Pump Motor. 

 
  



Panther Trace II 
Irrigation Well Installation Report 
May 2018 

E1 

Photo #10.  Well, Meter, Tank, Pad & VFD. 

 



GHS Environmental 
   PO Box 55802 

   St. Petersburg, FL 33732-5802 

   727-667-6786 

PO Box 55802, St. Petersburg FL 33732-5802 ▪ #727-667-6786 

 June 6, 2018 
Mrs. Rebecca Rivas 
District Manager 
Development Planning & Financing Group, Inc. 
1060 Maitland Center Commons Blvd. 
Ste. 340 
Maitland, FL 32751 
 
Re.: Panther Trace II CDD 

WUP #20706 Compliance 
GHS Proposal #: 18-128 REV 

 
Dear Ms. Rivas, 
 
GHS Environmental (GHS) pleased to submit this proposal to provide monthly meter 
readings for the existing Water Use Permit (WUP) #20706.000 conditions.  There are 
several special conditions within the WUP that requires additional services to stay in 
compliance with the permit. 
 
Special Condition #7 requires the submittal of an annual crop report on or before March 
1 of each year. This annual report must include the total number of acres, type of crop, 
soil type, irrigation method, and quantities used for the previous year. 
 
Special Condition #12 requires all withdrawals to be metered, which all meters have been 
installed and proper documentation has been submitted to the Southwest Florida Water 
Management District (SWFWMD).  Special Condition #12 and #13 requires that all meters 
are recorded on a monthly basis and the readings are submitted on or before the 10th of 
each month. 
 
GHS will travel to the site, collect the meter readings from the three newly installed 
meters, note any maintenance issues (i.e. leaks or meter malfunction), upload the 
readings to the SWFWMD WMIS system, and handle any correspondence associated 
with the meter readings.  GHS will start a working spreadsheet and monitor the water 
usage.  If water usage begins to come close to or over the permitted amount, we will notify 
you immediately to avoid any compliance issues. 
 
GHS will also submit the annual crop report each year using SWFWMD online system. 
 
 
 

[The remainder of the page is left blank intentionally.] 

 



Panther Trace II CDD: Monthly Meter Readings 
GHS Proposal #8-127 REV 
May 30, 2018 
Page 2 

 

The above task will be completed for a monthly fee of $225.  The total cost to complete 
2018 is $1,800.  The annual crop report will be submitted in March for no additional 
charge.  Unless otherwise advised, GHS will continue this monthly task for a yearly total 
of $2,700 each year our services continue.  This proposal and associated costs will not 
expire unless the contract is severed by either party.  GHS or the Panther Trace II CDD 
will provide 30 days notification to end this contract. 
 

 
 
We thank you for allowing GHS Environmental to provide our services and greatly 
appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal to you for consideration.  Please do not 
hesitate to call us at (727) 667-6786 with any questions you might have concerning this 
proposal.  If you wish to modify this proposal, GHS will readily tailor it to address your 
unique needs.  If this proposal meets with your approval, GHS would appreciate you 
indicating your acceptance by signing this page where indicated, and returning the signed 
copy to us or email it to dana@ghsenvironmental.com.  In closing, we appreciate being 
asked to provide assistance and look forward to working with you. 
 
Sincerely, Accepted by: 
 
GHS Environmental 
 
 ________________________ 
 Signature 
 

Dana J. Gaydos ________________________ 
Principal Date 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 8. 



Estimate
Date

6/12/2018

Estimate #

327

Name / Address

Anna Ramirez
Panther Trace 2
11518 Newgate Crest Dr.
Riverview, Fl. 33569

Jayman Enterprises, LLC
1020 HILL FLOWER DR
Brooksville, FL 34604

Project

Client Signature

Phone # (813)333-3008 jaymanenterprises@live.com
www.jaymanenterprises.com

Total

Description Qty Rate Total

Purchase and install Black chain link fence 10 x 10 with
door for access and lock for security. Price includes all
labor and materials.

2,450.00 2,450.00

$2,450.00



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 9. 



5/23/2018
 
Rebecca Rivas  
PANTHER TRACE COMMUNITY  
11518 NEWGATE CREST DR 
RIVERVIEW, FL  33569 
Quote: A183253606 
 
PANTHER TRACE II CDD:
 
Below is our proposal of recommended services, customized for your business needs identified during our discussions.  If you
ever need additional services, or just need an extra pickup, please give us a call at 813-265-0292.  It's that easy. 
 
Service Details     
SMALL CONTAINERS     

Price Adjustment
  

 
 

  

Equipment Qty/Type/Size: 1 - 4.0 yard Container Base Rate: $103.93 per month
Frequency: 1/week    
Material Type: Solid Waste    
     
Estimated Monthly Amount *   
 Small Container Base Rates $103.93  
 Administrative Fee** $5.25  
Total Estimated Amount $109.18  
 
 
Chris Armour  
Republic Services
 
CArmour@republicservices.com 
www.republicservices.com 
 
* The Total Estimated Amount is merely an estimate of your typical monthly invoice amount without one-time start-up charges (e.g., delivery).  It does not include
any applicable taxes or local fees, which would be additional charges on your invoice.
** FRF, ERF & ADMIN: The Fuel Recovery Fee (FRF) is a variable charge that changes monthly.  For more information on the FRF, Environmental Recovery
Fee (ERF) and Administrative Fee, please visit the links available on the Bill Pay page of our website, www.republicservices.com.  The proposed rates above are
valid for 60 days.  This proposal is not a contract or agreement or an offer to enter into a contract or agreement.  The purpose of this proposal is to set forth the
proposed framework of service offerings and rates and fees for those offerings.  Any transaction based upon this proposal is subject to and conditioned upon the
execution by both parties of Republic Services' Customer Service Agreement.

 

 

                            PROPOSAL

http://www.republicservices.com


INVOICE TO
CUSTOMER
NAME

PANTHER TRACE II CDD 

ATTN: Rebecca Rivas 
ADDRESS 250 INTERNATIONAL PKWY STE 280
  
CITY LAKE MARY, FL 
STATE  
ZIP CODE 32746-5018 
TEL. NO. (813) 873-7300          FAX NO.   

 SITE LOCATION
SITE
NAME

PANTHER TRACE COMMUNITY 

ADDRESS 11518 NEWGATE CREST DR 
CITY RIVERVIEW, FL   
STATE   
ZIP CODE 33569
TEL. NO. (813) 873-7300 FAX NO.
AUTHORIZED BY:  Rebecca Rivas TITLE 
CONTACT Rebecca Rivas TITLE

 

 

Customer Service Agreement
 

AGREEMENT NUMBER A183253606 
 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 696-1037561  
 

EMAIL rebecca.rivas@dpfg.com 
 

 

N/O CONT.
GRP

TYPE SIZE C QTY ACCT.
TYPE

C/O SERV.
FREQUENCY

EST.
LIFTS

S P.O.
REQ

RECPT.
REQ

L/F
CODE

OPEN/
CLOSE
DATE

LIFT
CHARGE

MONTHLY
SERVICE

EXTRA
LIFT

DISP RATE ADDITIONAL CHARGES ONE TIME CHARGES TC/RC
CMP

N
 
 
 

1 
 

FL 
 
 
 

4.0 Yd(s) N
 

1 
 
 
 
 

P
 

N
 

1/1/W  
   

  
 
 
 

 N SO01  6/1/2018   $103.93 
  
 
 
 

$165.00 
   
 

Delivery
Exchange
Extra Yds
Relocate
Removal

$181.50
$200.00
 $66.00

$181.50
$181.50

 
 
 

O
 

1  FL 4.0 Yd(s) N 1 P N
 

1/1/W
 

     

  N SO01 5/31/2018   $116.58    $165.00    
 

 
 

 Republic Services of Florida, Limited Partnership DBA Republic Services of Tampa 
HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE "COMPANY"

The undersigned individual signing this Agreement on behalf of the Customer acknowledges that he or she has read and understands the terms
and conditions of this Agreement and that he or she has the authority to sign the Agreement on behalf of the Customer.

 
   
   
   
BY:  TITLE:

(AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE)   
 

 
BY:
  

 TITLE:   
 
 
 

(AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE)   
   
   

CUSTOMER NAME (PLEASE PRINT)  DATE OF AGREEMENT
 

COMMENTS
Delivery Notes:
Safety: No Safety Concerns
     
Exempt From:  Fuel Recovery Fee, Environmental Recovery Fee   

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
 
SERVICES. Customer grants to Company the exclusive right to collect, transport, and dispose of or recycle all of
Customer’s non-hazardous solid waste materials (including Recyclable Materials) (collectively, “Waste Materials”),
and Company agrees to furnish such services as permitted by law.
 
TERM. THE INITIAL TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL START ON THE DATE ON WHICH SERVICE
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT COMMENCES AND CONTINUE FOR 36 MONTHS. THEREAFTER, THIS
AGREEMENT SHALL AUTOMATICALLY RENEW FOR SUCCESSIVE 36 MONTH TERMS UNLESS EITHER
PARTY GIVES WRITTEN NOTICE OF TERMINATION TO THE OTHER AT LEAST 60 DAYS BEFORE THE
END OF THE THEN CURRENT TERM. ANY NOTICE OF TERMINATION UNDER THIS AGREEMENT BY
CUSTOMER SHALL BE VOID UNLESS SENT VIA CERTIFIED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED, AND
ACTUALLY RECEIVED BY COMPANY.
 
WASTE MATERIALS. The Waste Materials shall not contain any hazardous materials, wastes or substances; toxic
substances, wastes or pollutants; contaminants; pollutants; infectious wastes; medical wastes; or radioactive wastes
(collectively, "Excluded Waste"), each as defined by applicable federal, state or local laws or regulations (collectively,
"Applicable Laws"). CUSTOMER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND HOLD HARMLESS COMPANY
FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DAMAGES, SUITS, PENALTIES, FINES, REMEDIATION
COSTS, AND LIABILITIES (INCLUDING COURT COSTS AND REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES)
(“COLLECTIVELY, “LOSSES”) RESULTING FROM THE INCLUSION OF EXCLUDED WASTE IN THE
WASTE MATERIALS.
 
TITLE. Company shall acquire title to Waste Materials when they are loaded into Company's truck. Title to and
liability for any Excluded Waste shall remain with Customer and shall at no time pass to Company.
 

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE



TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Continued from previous page)
 
PAYMENT. Customer shall pay Company for the services and equipment furnished by Company at the rates provided in this Agreement. Customer shall pay all taxes, fees and other governmental charges assessed against or passed through to
Company (other than income or real property taxes). Customer shall pay such fees as the Company may impose from time to time by notice to Customer (including, by way of example only, late payment fees, administrative fees and
environmental fees), with Company to determine the amounts of such fees in its discretion up to the maximum amount allowed by Applicable Law. Without limiting the foregoing, Customer shall pay Company: (a) a fee of $50 (which Company
may increase from time to time by notice to Customer) for each check submitted by Customer that is an insufficient funds check or is returned or dishonored; and (b) fuel/environmental recovery fees in the amount shown on each of Company’s
invoices, which amount Company may increase or decrease from time to time by showing the amount on the invoice. Customer shall pay Company within 20 days after the date of Company’s invoice. At any time after Company becomes
concerned about Customer’s creditworthiness or after Customer has made any late payment, Company may request, and if requested Customer shall pay, a deposit in an amount equal to one month’s charges under this Agreement.
 
RATE ADJUSTMENTS. Company may, from time to time by notice to Customer, increase the rates provided in this Agreement to adjust for any increase in: (a) disposal costs; (b) transportation costs due to a change in location of Customer or
the disposal or recyclable facility used by Company; (c) the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (Water, Sewer and Trash Collection Services), U.S. City Average; (d) the average weight per cubic yard of Customer’s Waste
Materials above the number of pounds per cubic yard upon which the rates provided in this Agreement are based as indicated on the cover page of this Agreement; (e) recycling sorting, processing, and related costs; (f) costs related to
Customer’s failure to separate Recyclable Materials from Waste Materials, the contamination of the Recyclable Materials, or other decreases in the value of the Recyclable Materials; or (g) Company’s costs due to changes in Applicable Laws.
Company may increase rates for reasons other than those set forth above with Customer’s consent, which may be evidenced verbally, in writing or by the parties’ actions and practices.
 
RECYCLABLE MATERIALS. This paragraph only applies in the event Company has expressly agreed to remove and transport Recyclable Materials (as defined in Florida Statute 403, including, but not limited to, Recovered Materials) to a
Material Recovery Facility or a Recovered Material Facility. Customer agrees that Company in its sole discretion may determine any single load is contaminated and may refuse to collect it or may charge Customer for any additional costs,
including (but not limited to) processing, disposal and transportation. Customer shall comply with all laws regarding the separation of solid waste from Recyclable Materials and use its best efforts to not place items in the container that may
result in the decrease in value of the Recyclable Materials or make the Recyclable Materials unsuitable for recycling.
 
SERVICE CHANGES. The parties may change the type, size or amount of equipment, the type or frequency of service, and correspondingly the rates by agreement of the parties, which may be evidenced verbally, in writing or by the parties'
actions and practices. This Agreement shall apply to any change of location of Customer within the area in which Company provides collection and disposal services.
 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT; ACCESS. Any equipment Company furnishes shall remain Company's property. Customer shall be liable for all loss or damage to such equipment (except for normal wear and tear and for loss or
damage resulting from Company's handling of the equipment). Customer shall use the equipment only for its proper and intended purpose and shall not overload (by weight or volume), move or alter the equipment. CUSTOMER SHALL
INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND HOLD HARMLESS COMPANY FROM AND AGAINST ALL LOSSES ARISING FROM ANY INJURY OR DEATH TO PERSONS OR LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY (INCLUDING THE
EQUIPMENT) ARISING OUT OF CUSTOMER’S USE, OPERATION OR POSSESSION OF THE EQUIPMENT. Customer shall provide safe, unobstructed access to the equipment on the scheduled collection day. Company may
charge an additional fee for any additional collection service required by Customer's failure to provide access.
 
DAMAGE TO PAVEMENT. Company shall not be responsible for any damages to Customer's pavement, curbing or other driving surfaces resulting from Company's providing service at Customer's location.
 
SUSPENSION. If any amount due from Customer is not paid within 60 days after the date of Company's invoice, Company may, without notice and without terminating this Agreement, suspend collecting and disposing of Waste Materials
until Customer has paid such amount to Company. If Company suspends service, Customer shall pay Company a service interruption fee in an amount determined by Company in its discretion up to the maximum amount allowed by Applicable
Law.
 
TERMINATION. In addition to its above suspension rights, Company may terminate this Agreement immediately by written notice to Customer if (a) any of the information contained in any credit application submitted to Company in
connection with this Agreement is untrue or (b) Customer breaches this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within 10 days after Company gives Customer written notice of the breach. Company's failure to suspend service or terminate this
Agreement when Customer fails to timely pay or otherwise breaches this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of Company's right to suspend service or terminate this Agreement for any future failure to pay or other breach.
 
PAYMENT UPON TERMINATION. If Customer terminates this Agreement before its expiration other than as a result of a breach by Company, or if Company terminates this Agreement as a result of a breach by Customer (including
nonpayment), Customer shall pay Company an amount equal to the most recent month's monthly charges multiplied by the lesser of (a) six months or (b) the number of months remaining in the term. Customer acknowledges that in the event of
such a termination, actual damages to Company would be uncertain and difficult to ascertain, such amount is the best, reasonable and objective estimate of the actual damages to Company, such amount does not constitute a penalty, and such
amount is reasonable under the circumstances. Any amount payable under this paragraph shall be in addition to amounts already owing under this Agreement.
 
ASSIGNMENT. Customer shall not assign this Agreement without Company's prior written consent, which Company shall not unreasonably withhold. Company may assign this Agreement without Customer's consent.
 
EXCUSED PERFORMANCE. Except for Customer's obligation to pay amounts due to Company, any failure or delay in performance due to contingencies beyond a party's reasonable control, including strikes, riots, terrorist acts, compliance
with Applicable Laws or governmental orders, fires and acts of God, shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement.
 
ATTORNEYS' FEES. If any litigation is commenced under this Agreement, the successful party shall be entitled to recover, in addition to such other relief as the court may award, its reasonable attorneys' fees, expert witness fees, litigation
related expenses, and court or other costs incurred in such litigation or proceeding.
 
MISCELLANEOUS. If service to Customer includes Container Refresh, Customer is limited to requesting one exchange of each participating container every twelve months of paid enrollment; any additional exchange is subject to Company’s
standard container exchange fee. Customer agrees that during any enrollment year in which Customer receives an exchange under the program, any service change request by Customer to cancel Container Refresh will not be effective until
Customer completes payment for twelve (12) consecutive months of enrollment in the program. Company reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to suspend or cancel the Container Refresh program. This Agreement sets forth the entire
agreement of the parties and supersedes all prior agreements, whether written or oral, that exist between the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement. Company shall have no confidentiality obligation with respect to any Waste
Materials. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure solely to the benefit of the parties and their permitted assigns. If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, it shall be modified so as to be valid, legal
and enforceable but so as most nearly to retain the intent of the parties. If such modification is not possible, such provision shall be severed from this Agreement. In either case, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions
of this Agreement shall not in any way be affected thereby. Customer and Company agree that electronic signatures are valid and effective, and that an electronically stored copy of this Agreement constitutes proof of the signature and contents
of this Agreement, as though it were an original.
 
CUSTOMER'S INITIAL:   DATE:  
 
 



 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 10 . 




	Exhibit 5 - expenditures May 2018.pdf
	Panther Trace II - Cover Letter May 2018
	pt2 check register may_2604
	pt 2 payables_2602

	Exhibit 7 - 2017panthertraceiispecialdistrict.pdf
	1 Table of Contents-1
	2 MD&A
	3 Financial Statements
	Gov-wide
	Smt-Act
	Fund-Bal
	Fund-Rec
	Fund-Change
	NetAsset-Rec
	Bud-Gen

	4 Footnotes
	Capital Asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2017 was as follows:
	NOTE F – LONG-TERM DEBT

	Special Assessment Refunding Revenue Bonds
	NOTE G – RISK MANAGEMENT


	5 201806121244




